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VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation
GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

YNDIRECT Securities Corporation (*the Company”) is 2 joint stock company established under the
Corporate Law of Vietnam according to Business Registration No. 0103014521 by Hanoi Authority for
Planning and Investment dated 07 November 2008, Business Registration No, 0102065368 amended
for tha 130 on 21 Octabar 2024, Securities Business Operation Licensa No. 220UBCK-GPHDED
issued by the State Secunties Commission dated 16 Novembes 2008 and Amended License for
Establishment and Cperation of Securities Company [The latest Amended Licansa for Establishment
and Operation of a Securities Company Mo, S3GPDC-UBCK dated 30 July 2024).

The principal activities during the current year of the Company are to provide brokerage services,
securities trading, underariting for securities issues, custodian services, financial and investment
advisory services, derivative trading services, cash advances and margin lending services.

Az at 31 December 2024, the Company's charter capital was WND 15,222 909,080,000 (a5 at 31
December 2023: WD 12,178,440,000,000).

The Company's Head Office is located at No. 01 Nguyen Thuong Hien Street, Nguyen Du Ward, Hai
Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has branches located in

Thanh Xuan = Hanol, Ho Chi Minh City, Da Nang, Vinh — Nghe An, Can Tho, Binh Duong, Quang
Ninh, Mam Dinh, Thanh Hoa and transaction offices located in Da Nang, He Chi Minh City and Hanoi.

Az at 31 December 2024, the Company had two (02) asscciates.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Enard of Directors (*BOD} during the yvear and at the date of this repor are a3 follows:

Ful Narme Titie Appointment/Resignation date

Ms. Pham Minh Huong Chairsoman Appointed on 11 November 2006,
Reappointed an 25 April 2022,
Resigned on 26 April 2023,
Appainted on 18 September 2023

br. Wu Hien Member Appaintad on 28 March 2009,
Reappointed on 25 April 2022,

Standing Vice Chairman Appointed on 11 Oclober 2024
Mr. Mai Huu Dat Yica Chairman Appointed on 21 July 2022
hir. Mguyen Wu Lang Membar Appointed on 25 April 2022,

Resigned on 26 April 2023,
Appointed on 18 September 2023

M. %u Viet Anh Independent memier Appaintad on 25 April 2022

BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this repont are as follows:

Full nams Title Appointment date

Ms. Hoang Thuy Nga Head of the Board of Supervision  Appointed on 21 April 2013,
Reappeointed on 25 April 2022

Mz, Nguyen Mgoc Mal Member Appointed on 17 June 2023

M=. Huynh Thanh Binh Minh  Member Appointed on 28 April 2012,

Reappointed on 25 April 2022




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation
GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

MANAGEMENT

Members of the Management during the year and at tha date of this report are as follows:

Eill name Title Appointment date

Mr. Nguyen Vu Long General Director Appointed on 18 September 2023
Mr. Ddeu Mgoc Tuan Chief Governance Officer Appaintad on 31 Oclober 2022
LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal represantative of the Comparny during the vear and at the date of these financial statements
are Ms, Pham Minh Huong - Chairmoman of the Board of Directors; Mr, Mguyen Vu Long - General
Director and Mr. Dieu Ngoc Tuan - Chief Govemnance Officer.

AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Emst & Young Vietnam Lirited



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Managament of VNDIRECT Securities Corporation {"the Company”) is pleased to present this report
and the accompanying financial staterments of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024,

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Company 5 responsible for the financial staterments of each financial year which
ghve a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the results of its oparations, Its
cash flows and its changes in owmers’ aquity during the year. In preparing those financial statements,
Management is required to:

= seléct suitable accounting policies and apply them consistantly;

»  make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether appficable accounting stendards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained In the financial statemants; and

»= prepare the financkal statements an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonzble accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and o ensure that the
accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. It |s also responsible for safeguarding
the assats of the Company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detaction of
frauds and ather irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying financial statements.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying financial statemants give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of the results of
its pperations, cash flows and its changes in owners' equity for the year then ended in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting
guidance applicable to securities companies and statutory reguirements relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statemants.

General Diractar

Hanoi, Yietnam

28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Ta: Tha Shareholders of
VMDIRECT Securities Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VNDIRECT Securities Corporation (“the
Compary”) as prapared on 28 March 2025 and set out on pages 068 to 89, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the
statement of changes in owners' equity for the year then ended and the notas theredo.

Management's responsibility

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Vieinamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
Systemn, accounting guidance appbcable to securities companies and statutory requirements relevant to
preparation and prasentation of the financial statements, and for such internal control as the Managament
delermines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errofr

Auclitors' responsibility

Qwr respansibility |s to exprass an opinion on these financial statements based on our awdit We conductad
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit mvolves performing procedures to ablain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the awditors' judgment. including the
assassment of the risks of material misstalemeant of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or amar.
In making those rsk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant Lo the Company’s
preparation and far presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the crcumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing an opinion cn the effectivenass of
the Company's intemal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
avaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemants,

We believe that the audit evidence wa have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for
our audit epinion,

& resmies fremal Brrad & Saung fEobad Lmied
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Opinion

In our cpinion, the financial staterments give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 Dacember 2024, and of the results of their operations, its cash flows and
its changes in owners’ equity for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamesa Accounting
Standards, Vietnamessa Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to securities
companies and the statulory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial
slatemeants.

q 3 Ha Tran Thi Thu Hisn
Deputy General Director Auditor
Audit Practising Registration Audil Practising Registration
Certificate Mo, 2400-2023-004-1 Cerfificate Mo, 2487-2023-004-1
Hanol, Yiatnam
28 March 2025
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-CTCK
STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION
a3 at 31 December 2024
Currency: VND
Coda | ITEMS MNofas Ending balarres | Begirning balance
100 | & CURRENT ASSETS (100 =110+ 130) 43,105,620,0417,289 | 40,414,384,838,078
110 | I Financial assets 42,938 352 78D, 537 | 40,278,857 863,343
111 1. Cash and cash equivalents 5 B81,175 660472 | 4.B51,988,278,037
111.1 1.1 Cash T34 66,680 472 | Z 6670955 270,037
171.2 1.2 Cazh eguialents 1456, 700,000,000 | 2,794 000,000,000
112 | 2. Financis assets al fair valus through Ti&
profit or koss (FWTPL) T4 | 24519200006, 786 | 16,729,968, 717, 500
113 3. Held-to-maturity investments (HTH) T2 5560973000000 ( 7,432 445 000,000
114 | 4. Loans 7.3 | 10,343,637 985 282 | 10,285 781,836,320
116 | 5 Provision for impasment of feancial
azzels and collatesals B (122,288 257,021) | §119.377.907 G24)
1T |6 Recsivables B 1,726,245 383,775 U35 574,555,232
117.1 &7 Recehahlas from dispasal of
faneial 2E5els 555,540 757,453 22 (95,255, F42
117.2 5.2 Recedvabies and acorusls fom
dividend and interest o 1,172, 704,626 322 6,578 322,400
11T.3 6.2 7 Dividiends and inderest imoome
duie fo be recehed 95 427412 362 a5,427 412 362
1174 6.2 2 Acorusd dividends jnd inerest
eome 1,077 277,213,960 B21,150.890,128
118 7. Adwances o suppliers ] 31,817,305,015 362 TTH.2ET2
118 | 8. Recelvaldes from senvices provided by
thar Company g 178.047 731,530 134, 658,603,828
122 9.  (her receivables g 7802 515 6483 33_B4D 257 B3
123 | 10, Prowsion for impairmant of receivables g (193,148,601, 005} {27.710,381.241)
130 . Other current assais 170,267, 236,752 135632974, 735
13 1. Advances 10,532 544 361 13,338,726, 731
133 | 2. Shorlterm prepaid expenses 10 32 570 592 D66 10,390 964 466
134 3. Shor-term deposits, collvlerals and
et 11 106,245,870, 000 06,585,217 160
137 4, {kher current assets 20,918,320 625 15,217,086,378
200 BE. ROMN-CURRENT ASSETS 1,189,156,655.182 | 1,327,705,333,284
(200 = 210 + 220 + 240 + 250
210 i.  Long-term financial assats 1,036, 750,771 556 1,160,986,673,978
211 1. Long-tem receiables 1,716,310,944 00,236 558, BED
212 | 2. Long terrm investmants 048 653,852,000 | 1,074,440 612,000
2721 27 HTM imvesimanis f.2 - 207, 650,000, (70
2123 2.2 tnvestmants in associales 12 14, 505,332,000 536, 715 332, 00l
2124 2.2 Qther iong-ferm investments 12 34,758, 520,000 38, 675 280,000
212 | 3 Provision for impairment of long-lerm
financial asgeis 12 (4,229 501 348) (3,710,756 973)
220 | I Fixed assets 84,080, 253,850 106,034,003,084
221 1. Tangiobs fined asaats i3 40,960,433 082 h2 527 041,805
222 1.1. Cosf 205, 271,274, 760 193.071,384,830
2334 1.2, Accuminated depreciation (164,310 842 &78) (14T, 4, 243,044)
227 2. Intangible fived assels 14 43,128 821,768 53,506,961,183
228 2.1. Cosf 182, THT.824 270 164 679,758,278
2289 2.2 Accumulated armartizabon (136,669,002 5713 | (79172 Fa7.081)
240 | W Censtruction in progress 3,780,T92,000 2,546,865,013
250 | iV, Other long-ferm assols 65,735,837, 776 58,157,791 275
251 1. Lomng-term deposits, collaterals and
pledges i1 3,104,872,428 3,253 442 428
252 | 2. Lomgderm prepaid expenses 10 27,620 BES, 348 19,764,243 BaT
254 3. Payment for Settlemem Azsistance Fund| 15 20,000,000, 000 20, 000, 030,000
285 | 4 Other non-curient gsseds i6 15,000.000,000 15,000, 000,000
ZT0 | TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 204 A4 254 7TE,ET24T1 | 41,742,090,171,366
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION {contniuad)
as at 31 December 2024

BM-CTCK

Currency: YD

Code | ITEMS Medas Ennding balancs ] Beginning bafance
300 C. LIABILITIES {300 = 310 + 340) 24,578,707 978,260 | 25,234,270,644 372
Mo i Cusrent Rabilities 24 502 482 RER 459 | 24,736,424 516,683
31 1. Shor-term bomowings and financial
leazes 18 | 22,436,244 535 318 | 20,468 £84, 184, 009
312 1.1. Short-favm bowowings 23 436 244 B35 316 | 20,468 484, 164, 985
6 2. Short-term bonds Esyed 14 400, 000,000,000 00, D00, GO0 Q00
a8 3. Payables for securities trading activities 20 1,113,475, 9868 207 421,565 27 087
320 4. Short-tarm trade payables 28,958 603,137 65,658,430, 208
321 | 5 Shor-lermn advances from cusiomers 23,304 256,548 20,574 256 B4f
322 B. Slaiutory abligations 21 236, 583 401,372 243,367 566,722
323 7. Payables fo employees 11,308 502 852 28,042 562 100
324 8. Employes benalits 3,852 0g4 203 4 029 025,381
325 9, Short-term accrued expensss &2 68,395 523,084 150,575,588 290
3z 10. Oher shor-temm payables 1,284 874,200 | 2.371435512,100
330 | 11, Shart-lerm provision - G0, 000 000, 000
331 12, Bonus and walfane fund 1B, 284 031,180 T2,641 002 853
340 i, Non-current Tabilifies F7,225.090,801 497 846,127,088
348 1. Long-erm bonds issued 19 - 400,000, 000,000
a8 | 2. Defered incoms tax Eabilities 23 77,2258 00 804 oF 34B6,137 689
400 0. OWHERS' EQUITY (200 = 410) 19,715,068,683,211 | 16,507,819,526,994
418 . Ownors" aguity 24.2 | 19 715,068,603, 211 | 16,507,819,526 954
411 1. Share capilal 15,222 B28, 001 540 | 12,178,308,511,540
471.1 1.1. Capitsl contrnbution 15,222 999,080 000 | 12,178 440,050, 000
411,78 a, Dveliiary shares 15,222 999 020,000 | 12 178,440,060 000
§11.2 1.2. Share pramim (171,078, 460) (41,578, 4600)
417 2. Undistributed profil 241 4,492 340691871 | 4,320.421,015,454
4171 24, Realivad profil affer fax 4 183,340 328 462 | 2 038,036 504,604
d17.2 2.2, Unrealizad profit J08, 000 363, 208 301,384, 510, 760
440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWMHERS'
ECQUITY (440 = 300 + 400} 44 284 776,672,471 | 41,742,090,171,365

A
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-GTCK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continwead)
for the year ended 31 Dacemnber 2024
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Cuyrrency: VND
Code | ITEMS Potes Ending balance | Baginning balance
A, ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSETE MANAGED UNDER
AGREEMENTS
00 | 1. Doubtiul debis writhefi-off 101,886, 716,060 101 986,716,050
008 | 2. Outsianding sharas (numbser of shanes) 244 1,622,255 0908 1,217 B4 000
008 | 3. Financial aszets kstediregisierad for
trading al Vielnam Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation {WEDC") of the
Company 251 | 10081 489,720,000 | 7.622.045 590,000
002 | 4. Mondraded financial assets deposited at
VEDLC of the Company 25.2 325 032,200,000 407, 194 530,000
Mo | 5 Awailing financial assels of the Company | 25.3 | 1,056,813,400,000 G7E, 284, 540,000
12 | 6. Financial assets which have not been
deposited at VEDC of the Company 254 | RIUIEZTZEOO,000 [ 9,747.837720,000
013 | 7. Financial assets enfdled 1o the rghts of
the Company 235 T80, 000 190,000
M4 | B.  Coversd warrants (nimber of covarad
wharranis) - 12p,880.100
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENT WITH INVESTORS
021 | 1. Finanoisl assets listediregistersd far
trading al WSDG of investors 87 664,807 ,954.600 | 83,305, 162 055 £0O
Q21 1.1 Unwvestricted francial azsefs T2 283 899 794 800 | 72.563.078 785500
o212 1.2 Resfncled francial assels 4,154 055,170,000 344, 230 650,000
G21.3 {.3 Morigaged financial assets 100643 324 820000 | © 317 872 660.000
o214 1.4 Blocked financial sssels 3,148 330,000 64, 708,520,000
021.5 1.5 Financil assels awaifing seitlement SE0.479,920,000 | 1,015.501, 140,000
022 | 2. Mon-traded financial assets deposited al
VEDC of investons 1,011,254, 680,000 | 2,787,669, 350,000
o221 2.1 threstrcted and non-traded fnancial
assels doposited Bf VEDT G50 420 310,000 | 1,408 067,340,000
o222 2.2 Restrcted and mov-lraded francial
assels degositad af VOO J60.874, 380,000 | 1,378,622 010,000
03 | 3. Awailing financial assets of iInvestors 258 BE0 168, 130,000 B45 AR BT T, 000
024b | 4. Financlal assets have nol been deposied
at VRO of invasiors 257 | 3B.553.368,231,000 | 37,744 560,705,500
025 | 6. Financial assets entitled to fw rights of
irvestors 25.8 1685,075,680,000 202, 234,500,000

Lid =5 Pl
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO1-CTCK
STATEMENT OF FINANCLIAL POSITION (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)
Currency VND
Coge | ITEME Alofes Ending badance | Beginning btance
B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMEMNT WITH INWESTORS
{continusd)
26 | & Ineestors’ deposids 5412854, 193,669 | 6,366 086 514,636
027 &1 Investors' deposiis for secuslies
trading acthaties Wanaged by he
Company 25% 4, 763,883,198, 318 | 4,335470.285 643
02r.1 6.2 Investors’ escrow deposil af VEDC | 258 157,281,513 760 238 571,985 977
028 6.2 Investors spnthesiring deposits for
securhies frading activiies 259 7,004 508,500,833 | 1,752222 751,362
o24 6.4 Cleadng deposils amd payrment of
secumies fransactions £, 799,101,528 145,129,804
0287 - Cleanmg depasits and paymen!
af secydlies transacions by
domesic mvesions 63,009,151 71,731 832
o242 - Clearng degasits amnd papmen
e eecuvilies fransaciions by
foreign imestong 2. 736100377 77,387,972
A 6.5 Daposits of secunilies lsguers 2570 181,878 233 472,311,850
031 | 7. Payables foimestors - imvesiors'
deposits for securities frading activities
managed by the Company 25.11 5412662,315435 | §,366.414,202.788
0311 7.1 Payates to domestic investors for
securifies trading achivilies
managed by the Company 4,807, 820,870 825 | 5351656471561
03T, 7.2 Payabies to forsign invesfors for
secivifies rading aclivilies
managed by the Comparny 163,550 830, 857 Tr6 185 Fa0 178
037.3 7.3 Payabies fo Nvasiors’ escrmw
depasis al VSO0 151,281,573, 760 2385718995 877
135 | 8.  Dividend, bond principal and interest
payables 25.12 191,878,233 L 472,311,850
Hanoi, \Vistnam
= s 28 March 2025
_._..r" 'II:{:'F*_‘-'-"" i "-1_.
§ V . ”‘-.,
o CONG 1"{ -t
) °f chPHEN |0
2
"-.,
\-.____5 oy 18
Ms. Le Thi Hoai Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Mguyen Wu Long

Preparer

Chiaf Accountant

Ganeral Direcior

e v
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO2-CTCK
INCOME STATEMENT
for the yaar endad 31 December 2024
Curmangy WD
Coda | ITEME hotes Carerl pear Previous year
. OQPERATING INCOME
ot 1. Gain from financial assets at i value
threwsh profit and loss ("FYTPLT) 2,758,053,156,000 3.B03 176,587 380
o1 1.1 Gain from diepozal of fancial
assels &f FVTFL 261 1,640,445 035 764 2,084, 804 454, TES
071.2 1.2 Gain from revalvaiion of fnancal
aszafs at FVYTHEL 282 653, 743,604,020 1, 148,558 786, 104
1.3 1.3 Dividend, infarest income from
fimarcial assads af FWTRL o83 474,018 946, 216 545 677855 892
09.4 1.4 Gads fram revalivabion of
oufsfanding coversd warmanf
payables 49,545 479 400 13 737, B0, 6O
02 | 2, Gan fram held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments 26.3 471 &41, 706,002 505, 0ED TA7 058
03 | 3. Gainfrom lpans and receables 26.3 1,254 B55 005,185 1,154,0B5,633 047
oa 4, Reverwe from brokerage sanvicas 713,563 736,160 867 020,313,818
07 | & Revenue from undarwriting and
Esuance agenty Servioes 53.074 206 167 107,575, 367,174
0% | & Revenoe from securnilies cusbodisn
sEMNiCcas BA.97TH 473 588 82 478235601
10 | 7. Revenue from financial advisory
SEVICRS 11,948,090, 5045 10,588,870,278
11 6. Revenue from other operating aclivilies 15,831,430,475 20,496,961 163
20 | Total operating incoms (20 = 01 2 11 5,324 944 484 28§ 6,561,422, 166,429
. OPERATING EXPENSES
1 1. Losz from Snancial assels al fai value
throwgh profit and loss ["FWTPLT) 1,261,254 474 488 1,485 801,101,309
21.1 1.1 Lose from disposal of francial
assals of FUTPL 251 #53 950, 446, 204 547,397, T3T, 633
272 1.2 Loss from revaluation of framcial
assaie st FUTPL 282 TH2 023,183,659 543,607, 842 876
21.3 1.3 Transaclion costs of acquisition of
financial aeseds af FYVTFL GO0 ET0 425 1,583 325000
294 1.4 Loss from revslusdion of covensd
warrant payables 54,671, 174,200 8812 185800
24 2. Provizion  expensef{reverssl)  for
diminution n valee and impairment of
financial assets, doubtful receivables
and bormowing costs of loans 27 130,321,116,264 {B6,509,241 B0G)
26 | 3. Expenses foi propriefary trading
activities 28 51,389.156,101 34 327 608,913
27 4. Expenzes for brokerage senices 28 458 171 485 937 615404 78 512
28 | 5. Expenses for undanwriing and
issuance agency senvioes 28 S.043, 508,778 8,264,802 321
29 | 6. Expentes for secuifies imvesiment
advisony Senices 28 480 280 308 L35 415 223
30 | 7. Expenses for secigilies cuslodian
services 28 30,574,060, TES 28,812,888 367
3 8. Expenzes for financial advisony
LEryioes 28 31,557,599, 000 25,202 442 TS
32 9. Expansas for other services 28 139 401,770,807 74,523 825 815
40 | Total operating expenses (40 = 21 = 12) 2,122 113,453 488 2,194 254 402 509

100



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO2-CTCK
INCOME STATEMENT [continuead)
feir the year ended 31 December 2024
Curedey, VWD
Code | [TEMS | Notas Current year Prewvious year
Nl FINANCIAL INCOME
a1 1.  Realzed and unrealized gain from
forsign exchange rates differences - 10,043 GET, TER
42 | 2 Dwidend income and interest income
from demand deposits 23,968 433,872 22 539 602 638
43 3. Gain from disposal of investments - 5,000,000, 000
ad 4. Fmancial mcome from other
inwestmant activities - 3100433 425
50 Total financial income (50 = 41 < 44) 23,968,433 872 40,735 813,022
V. FINAMNCIAL EXPENSES
&1 1. Raalzed and unreallsed loss from
fereban exchange rates diffarences s 3,381,482570
2 2. Borrowing costs BET 453,356 160 1 444 408 517 728
G4 | 3. Provision expenses for impairmeant of
lomg-term financial immstments 518,584,415 1,620,996,501
655 4. her financial expensas 13,760, 163,058 30,357 33T 878
=] Total financlal expenses (80 = 51 < §5) 681,702,153 642 1,488, 774,315,276
62 | V. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY 20 453, 311,535893 430,067 513,400
70 | V. DPERATING PROFIT
(70 =20+ 50 - 40 - 60 - 62) 2,081,785,TRETEY 2,485,065 628,068
Wil OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
71 1. Cher income 172,577,076 018,653,567
T2 2. Other experses 3,634 200,535 T.641,875.660
80 | Total other operating loss (80 =T71=T1} {3,461,623,460) (B, 723177.007)]
o0 | VI, PROFIT BEFORE TAX (20 =T0 + 80) 2,088 324,132,297 2,482,342 451,973
L] 1. Realised profit 2,191 428,316,736 2272 167 813,945
82 | 2. Unnealised profitiloss) {103,105, 184 425} 210,174,538, 028
100 | B, CORPORATE INCOME TAX {CIT)
EXPEMNSES 369, 855,102,085 4E60,091,531,9585
100.1 | 1. Cusrend CIT expansa 0.1 360,520,138,973 418 056 604,380
1002 | 2 Deferred CIT expensafincome) 30,2 (20,621,036,8084) 42 034 927 BO6
200 | X. PROFIT AFTER TAX 1,718,425,030,212 2,022,250,919,578
BO0 | Xl METINCOME APPROPRIATED TO
ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS 1,T1E 425,000,212 2,022 250,819,978
801 Basle samings per share
(WMDvshare) (Rastatod) 3 1,129 1,207
D= . Hanoi, Wietnam
EEHE TY % 28 March 2025
g:] FHAN
- CHUNE
: A i
A YIKIHE
% 2 ..-'... n
i e v
Ms. Le Thi Hoal Ms. Mguyen ThijHucng Mr. Nguyen Vu Lang
Praparar Chief Azcountant General Director
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VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO3b-CTCK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 Decamber 2024
Cermency: WD
Cude | [TEMS Moles Current ypear Previous year
. GASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
01 | 1. Profit before tax 2.088,324,132,297 | 2482342451873
02 |2 Adjustments for: {345,140,500,901) EES 265,660,720
03 Cigpreciation and amaorisation 59,830,029, 068 45,004 516,560
04 Prowisiona 100,442, 278,873 1,080,758 304
L Unreallsed gain from foreign exchange
rates differancas = (9,743,209,475)
06 Inferest expenses BE7.433,306,169 | 1444405517726
ar Prafits from imesling activities {141,578, TEEH) (5,000,000, 000}
08 Accruad interast income (1,172,704 626,322} (216,578,322, 490)
10 | 3. Increase in non-monstary expenses BOT 212,952,274 854 150,035,577
11 Loss from revaksalion of nancial assels
at FYTPL and loss Trom revaluation of
covered warrant paysbles BOG 554, 35T B5Y 852 520,038 676
16 Provision expenses for impairmend of
lang-term financiad investments 618,554,415 1,629 056 801
18 | 4. Decrease in non-manetany ncoma (703,580 173,420 | (1,162,694 676, 704)
12 Gain from revaluafion of financial essets
at FWTPL and gain from revaluatisn af
coverad warmanl payablos {703,560, 173 4200 | (1,162.604,676,T04)
30 | 5 Operating incomea before changes in
working capital 1,848,007 410,250 | 2,833,067 471,588
a {Increaseldecreaze n financial assels
FWTPL {7 .BET 420,756,835 1,745,022 066,524
32 [Increase)decraaze in HTM imeatments 2.073,122,000,000 | 2033995 000,000)
33 Increases in loans (67 835 148,872) | (1,224 O76,085,241)
a5 {Increase)idecrease in receivables from
disposal of financial sssete (B33 444 491, 711) | 1,830,228 167,138
5 Decregse in recetvables, accruals from
dividend and inbevest on financial asseis 916,678,322 450 592 528 754 261
=7 {Increase)idecrease in recelvables fram
sanvicas provided by the Carmpany {43, 380,097 5D4) 134,658,583, 028
38 Incréase in otfver receivables (20,590 9554 T2) (140, 3002 094, BEE]
40 {incraaseydecrease In other agsets 2807 382 470 (42,305,505, 574)
41 Decreaze in sccrded expenses (excluding
interes] expanses) (1,588 377.528) {1,345,405,172]
42 (Increaseidacresse N prepaid Bxpenses (30,045, 144 501 22,546,057 528
43 Casreni| corporate income fex paid 21 (3B5,240,177,295) (249 911,964, 305)
44 Interest expansss paid (7EE, 024,003 447) [ ¢1,505,272,901,981)
45 Increasedeciease) 0 Irade payablos (33 849 827 161) 56,191,302 458
46 Increaseddecrease) in employes benefits (FE.031,178) 9,693,031 522
47 Drecresss in stafutory obligations
{excluding paid CIT) (11,384, 128,338) {23,565,308 438)
48 Increasef(decrease) in payables to
employess {16, 736,059,278 10,747,234 BSE
&0 Increasefidecrease) in other payables
and payables for covedisd warranis (2,083,125 663,480} 036,731,422 503
G2 (Hher payments for operating activities (54,203,247 TT0) (T4.612.516.124)
&0 | Met cash flows from/{uged in) operating
activities {708, 709,086 860)| 2.175018,923,081
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO30-CTCK

CASH FLOW STATEMENT {continued)
far the year ended 31 Decamber 2024

Curancy: WVND
Cods | ITEME Maoies Curranf pear I FPrevious year

. CASHFLOWSE FROW INVESTING
ACTHATIES

&1 | 1. Purchase and constriclion of fixed
assets, investmant propedies and
other long-term assets {38 525 073 46T) (67, VB8 121,400)
g2 [ 2. Propeeds from disposal and sale of
fiwed zssets, invesiment properfies
and ather kng-lerm assets 148 445 455
63 | 3 Cash payments for investments in
subsidiaries, assaciates, jaint veniures,

and clher mesiments (78, 550,000, 000} (181,134, TES.000)
84 | 4 Procesds from sale of investments in
ather entities 3,806, 780,000 185,000,000,000
70 Net cash flow used In investing activities (114,250,668,032) (83,323,910, 400)
lll. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
™ | 1. Cash recespd from issuance of shares,
capital contributed by shareholdens 2,435 535,820,000 -
72.2 | 2 Cash receipt from sales of ireasury
shares - 358,525,550
73 | 3. Drawdown of bomowings o8, 519,103 4596, a2 6,684 568 963 508
73.2 - her barmowanos 48,575 193 455, 702 BF 884, 558 062 506
Td | 4, Repaymaent of borrmwvings (07 351 433,026 465) | (06.573,031,464,639)
T4.3 - Oither repayment of bormowings (97,351, 433,006,465) | (5G 573.031,464 638)
T6 |5 Dividends, profit dislibuled to
shareholders (761,749 054, 000)
B0 | Met cash flow from financing activities 3,242 147,336,327 311.906,021,817
80 | IW. NWET INCREASE/DECREASE)IN
CASH DUWRING THE YEAR (3,500,812,618,565) 2,403 801,034 478
101 | V. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5 4,861, 968,279,037 2 ABE 38T 244 559
1011 Cash 2 GET fE8 270 037 1, 788,175,744, 5558
101.2 Cash equivalents 2,194,000,000,000 £70,211,500,000
103 | V. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE EMD OF THE YEAR 5 BE1, 175,660,472 4,861,568,279,037
1031 Cash T34 468 650 472 2 687908 779,037
1032 Cash equlvakents 148, 709,000,000 2,194, 000 000,000

13

T - A Y



VNDIRECT Securties Corporation BO3b-CTCK
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued}
for the year ended 31 December 2024
CASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS
Currency! VD
Prawvious ear
Coge | ITEMS Metes Cunrent year {Rasialed)
I.  Cash flows from brokerage and
trust activities of customers
a1 1. Cash receipts from disposal of
brokerage securilies of customers 280 506 574 T46 888 | 206,332 467 175,573
o2 2. Cash payments for purchases of
wokerage securilies of customers (285,335, T86,066,470) | (307, 188,015,052,0386)
a7 | 3. Cash receipis for seting customers’
securiles ransactions 801,100,285.294,783 933,848 B73.467.187
071 | 4. Increasaidecreass) investors'
daposit &t WEOC (7,290,482 217 3017 H32.3M
08 | 5 Cash payrment for securities
transactions of customen (E06 204,315,459 2485 | (931 445 208,715, 8705
11 f. Cash payment for custadian fens of
customers (22 490 BaD 5E5) (20,725 815 633)
14 | 7. Cash recaipta from securilies ssuers 4 448 013 857,590 6,68 1,876,550 856
15 B. Cash payments bo securilies issuars (4 446 204 209 207 {6.681,910,515,387)
20 | Met increaselidecrease) in cash during
the year (954,032,320,967) 1,551,070,681 472
30 . Cash and cash equivabents of
customers at the beginning of the
yaar 6,366,886,514,636 4815815823164
3 Lash at banks at the beginning of the year G354 886 514,636 4 815 815823,164
a2 Investors' deposits managed by thi
Compary for secuilies trading
activities 4338 470,285 643 3,693,078453,523
321 | - Investors' escrow deposils al VSDC 238,571, 995977 214 554 353 535
33 |- Invesioss' synthesizing deposile for
securities trading activities 1,782 223 791 362 1,007 421,938 576
34 - Deposits for securilies clearng and
selllement 1459 120 Ak 116 430,603
35 Deposits of aecurilias [ssuers 472,311,850 544 576,381
40 | L Cask and cash equivalents of
customers at the end of the year 5412854193 669 B 388 BEE 514,536
41 Euah at banks &l fe end of e year 5,412,554,193 668 & J66, 8895 514 536
42 Inwestorns’ deposits managed by the
Company for securties trading
activities 2589 o, 163,803,198.315 4 336 470,285,643
421 | - Investods' escrow deposit at WSDC 254 151,281,513, 780 £35,571,895.977
43 | - Investors’ synthasizing deposits for
secumifies trading activifies 250 1,084 588 500,833 1,702 222 791,362
dd | - Deposils for securilies clearing and
sattlameant 2,799,101,528 144,129,604
45 - Deposits of secodlies ssuers 2510 191,878,233 472111 BE0
Ms. Le Thi Hoai Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Nguyen Vu Long
Praparar Chief Accountant General Director
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VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO4-CTCK
ETATEMENT OF CHANGES IM OWHNERS' EQUITY
for the year end 31 December 2024
Cuvrancy: VA
Bagining balance increaseDiacraase Ending balance
Pl Plckey I Fravious year Curren| year
O January 2023 89 Janwary 2024 I ~ Beciais e— Facraasa] 91 Decembar 2023 31 Cwcedtrhar 2024
& B 1 ] k] 4 5 B T ]
I, CHAWGES IN
CWYNERS" EQUITY 14 405,300, 083,066 | 16,607,810, 525,894 |  2,022,260,518,978 356,523,950 | 4,B4546816T, 763 | {1,638,218,004,548) | 16,507 BUS 526,904 | 19,718,0886083, 211
1. Share caphal 12,178, 020,887 500 | 12,178.390,511.540 - JGE 523050 | 3,044, 558,500,000 (129, 800,000) | 12,178A58,511,640 | 16,222,828.001, 540
1.1 Ovknary share 242 |43 TTE 40,000,000 | 12178, 440,000 GO0 o| 300, 558 990 000 -| TRITAL40000.000 | 15222, 020,060, 000
1.2 Share prevnivm T4 508,778 47,578 4008 (36, 080.6.38) - 128, 500,000} (47.578. 4600 (171,078 4600
1.3 Treasury shanes {24,670, 588) - 424 670,585 T = - B
2, ;—'"'ﬁ'rﬂﬂwﬂ prodi SI0TATO0684TE | 4 228,421, 095454 | 2,022.250,919,078 - 1,B0CLB0EATT,TE | {1, 630,005.501,58458) | 4.029421,015,864 | 4,492 240,681 T
! Raaised proft
aiter fax 240 | 2083504 398 138 | AGPSOIRSNAG04 | 1654, 171,208,550 1,800,806, 177 763 | 050005392990 | 03B 0G50 60 4149 340,358 480
2.2 Lnmakzed ol | 2491 23394 300,338 391384510 FH0 TGS, 136 714, 432 + {BZ 434, 74T 557} I, 364, 510 180 SO0, 400 353 209
TOTAL 4.2 | 14 408, 200,003,056 | 15,507,519,526.904 | 022250, 118,078 JG8, 623,680 | 4,845.468,157,763 | (1,638,299,001 B46]) | 16,507 819,525,004 | 19,718,068 583, 211
Hanatl, Wietnam
28 March 2025
Ms. La Thi Hoai Ms. Nguyan Thi Huong Mr. Nguyen Vu Long
Preparer Chief Accountant General Diractor
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

VNDIRECT Securities Corporation {"the Company”) is a joint stock company established
under the Corporate Law of Vietnam according to Business Registration No. 003014521 by
Hanoi Authority for Planning and Investment dated 07 November 2008, Business Registration
Mo, 0102085366 amended for the 13" on 21 Oclober 2024, Securities Businass Operation
License No. 22/UBCK-GPHDKD issued by the State Securities Commission dated 15
Movember 2006 and Amended License for Establishment and Operation of Securities
Company (The latest Amended License for Establishment and Operafion of a Securities
Company No. 53/GPDC-UBCK dated 30 July 2024),

The principal activities in the curent year of the Company are to provide brokerage senvices,
sacurilies trading, underwriting for securties lssues, custodian services, financial and
investiment advisory services, derivative trading senvices, cash advances and margin lending
services,

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's charter capital was WVND 15,222 998,080,000 (as at
31 December 2023: VND 12,178.440,050,000).

The Company’s Head Office is located at No. 01 Nguyen Thuang Hien Street, Nguyen Du
Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has
branches located in Thanh Xuzn = Hanod, Ho Chi Minh City, Da Nang, Vinh — Nghe An, Can
Tho, Binh Duong, Quang Ninh, Nam Dinh, Thanh Hoa and transaction offices located in Da
Mang. Ho Chi Binh City and Hanaol.

The number of the Company’s employess as at 31 December 2024 was: 1,077 people (as at
31 December 2023: 1,174 people),

Company's operation

Capital

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's charier capdal was VYND 15222 509,080,000;
Cwners' equity was WND 18,715 068,683 211 and total assets ware WND 44,294 776 672,471,

Invaziment resiAclions

The Company is required to comply with Article 28 of Circular Mo, 12120207 T-BTS dated
31 December 2020 by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance on operation of securities
companies and other applicable regulations on investment restrictions. The current applicabla
practices on investment resticlions are =3 follows:

¥ Securities company B not allowed to ivest, contribute capital to invest in real-estate
aszels excapl for the purpose of use for head office, branches, and transaction offices
directly serving professional business activites of the securities company.

k  Securifies compary may invest in real-estate investment and fized assets on the principle
that the carrying value of the fixed assets and real-estate investment should not exceed
fifty percent (50%) of the tofal assets of the securities company.

» Securities company is not allowed to use more than seventy parcent (70%) of its owners’
equity io invest in corparate bonds. Securities company, icensed to engage in self-trading
activity, is allowed to trade listed bonds in accordance with relevant regulation on trading
bonds.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

BOS-CTCK

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then andad

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (confinued)

Company's gperation {continued)
Investment restriclions (confinued)

»  Securities company must not by itself, or authorize another organization or Individuats 1o
Invest in shares or confribute capital to companies that owned more than fifty pemcent
(50%) of the charter capital of the securities company, except for purchasing of odd Iots
at the request of customers; Make joint investment with an affiliated person of five percent
(5% or more in the charter capital of another securities company; Invest more than twenty
parcant (20%) in the fotal currently circulating shares or fund cerificates of a lsting
organization; Invest more than fiftean percent (15%) in the total currently outstanding
sharas or fund certificates of an unlisted organization, this provision shall not apply 1o
member fund, ETF fund or open-end fund certificates; Invest or contribute capital of mare
than ten percent (10%) in the total paid-up capital of & limited company or of a business
project; Invest more than fifteen percent (15%) of s owners' equity in & single
organization or of & business project; Invest more than seventy percent (70%) of its total
owners' equity in shares, capital contribufion and a business project, specifically invest
more than twenty percent (20%) of its total owners' equity i unlisted shares, capital
contribution and a business project

Associales
As 8t 31 December 2024, the Company had two (02) associates as foliows:
Business % Proportion

Campany nama Esfabiished undlar Secior Chartar capital Fiieiing v
Pogl - Business Regstration  Man-kfe VD 0% 20%
Telecommumcation and Operating License  inswrance B3 057 090,000
Jolrt - Stock Mo, 3ELNGP-UB dated and financial
nsurance 01 Awsgust TH08 and sErvices
Caorporetion the latest amendad business

Ciperating License Mo

A1AGPDCIZKDEH

dated 05 January 2022
Caoldgan Food Business Registrabon  Restaurant VD 5.55% 3B%
Joind Siock ko, 0108851120 Esued  business, 1,265, 501,000,000
Company by Hanoi Department of food service

Planning and Irmestmen
dated 17 Qclober 2019
and subsequent
amendmeants
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
&s at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

2.9

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Purpose of preparing the financial statements

The Company prepared thesa financial statements to mest the prevailing requirements in retation
o disclosure of information, specfically the Circutar No. 982020/TT-BTC on disclosure of
information on the sacurities market,

Applied accounting standards and systerm

The financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, the accounting regulation and guidance
applicable to securities companies as set out in Circular Mo, 2102014/TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014, Clroutar Moo 3342018TT-BTC dated 27 Decamber 2016 smending,
supplementing end replacing Appendicas No. 02 and Mo, 04 of Circular No. 210/2014/TT-
BTC, Circular No. 114/2021TT-BTC dsted 17 December 2021 providing guidance on
financial regime applicable to securities companies and fund management companies and
other Vietnamease Accounting Standards promulgated by the Ministry of Finance as per:

F  Decision Mo, 1492001/Q0-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the [ssuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting {Sarias 1);

* Decision Mo, 1652002/Q0-ETC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting {Saries 2);

# Decision No, 2342003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 3);

Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the lssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vieinamese Standards on Accounting (Series 4); and

F  Decizion Mo 100/2005/00-BTC dated 28 Decembsr 2005 on the [ssuanca and
Promulgation of Four Vistnamese Standards on Accounting (Saries 5)

Registered accounting documentation system

The Company's registered accounting system is the General Jounal Voucher system.
Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year starts on 01 January and ands on 31 December
Accounting currency

The financial statements are prepared in Yietnam Dong ("WHND), which is alzo the accounting
currency of the Campany.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
as at 31 Decembear 2024 and for the year then ended

.2

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH VIETNAMESE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AMND
SYSTEMS

Management of the Company confirms that the Company has complied with \iethamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance
apgplicable to securites companies and stajutory requirements relavant to preparation and
presentation of the financial statemants.

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements, including their utilisation are not
designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles, procedures
and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and changes in owners' equity and notes to the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other
than Vietnam

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash en hand, cash at banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible
intc known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Cash deposited by customers for securiies trading and cash deposited by securities issugrs
are presented on the off-balance sheet.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asests recognized at feir value through profit and boss are financial assets that
satisfy aither of the following cenditions:

a) It is classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading it

* It & acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing # in the
near term;

there is evidence of a racent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» it is @ derivative {except derivative that is a financlal guarantee contract or effective
hedging instrumant)

b) Upon initial recognition, a financial asset is designated by the entity &s at falr value
threugh profit and boss as it meets one of tha following criteria;

» The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent freaiment that
walld otherwise arise from measuring the asset or recegnising gains or losses on a
different basls; or

*» The assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
fisk management policy or (nvestment strateqy,

Financial assets at FVTPL are inifially recognized at cost (scquisition cost of the assets
excluding transaction cost arising from the purchase) and subsequently recognized at falr
vakue,

Increase in the difference arising from revaluafion of financial assets at FVTPL in comparison
with the previous period is recognized into the income statement under “Gain from revaiuation
of financial assels at FVTPL", Decrease in the difference ansing from revaluation of financial
assets at FVTPL in comparison with the previous year is recognized into the income statement
under ‘Loss from reveluation of financial assels at EVTPL”

Transaciion costs refating to the purchase of the financial assets at FVTPL are recognized
when incured as expenses in the income statement.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.
43

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad)
Held-to-maturity investments (HTM)

Held-to-maturity invastments are non-derivative financial assets with determinable payments
and fixed maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other
{han:

a) Those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
boss;

b) Those that the entity designales as avallable for sale; and
¢l Those meet the definitton of loans and recaivables,

Held-te-maturity investments are recognized initially at cost (acquisition cost of the assets
plus (+) transaction costs which are directly attributable to the investments such as brekerage
fes, trading fee, agent fee, issuance agency fes and banking fransaction fee). After inifial
racognition, held-to-maturity financial investments are subseguently measured at amortized
cast using the effective interest rate ["EIR”)}

Amertized cost of HTM financial investmeants is the amount al which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus (<) principal repayments, plus (*) or minus (<) the
cumuiative amortisation using the affective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus {-) any reduction for impairment or
recoverability (if any).

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the cost allocation on interast
income or interest expense in the year of a financial asset or & group of HTM investmenis

The effective inlerest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash paymenis
of receipls through the expected life of the financlal instrumeant or, whan appropriate, @ shorter
period to the net carmrying amount of tha financial assets or financial llabies.

Accrued interest is recognized under "Receivables and accrnials from dividend and inferast
income of inancial assefs”,

HTM invastments are subjected to an azzessmeant of impairment at the financial statermant
date. Provision ks made for an HTM investment whan there s any objectve avidence that the
investment is irecoverable or there Is uncertainty of recoverability, resulting from one ar more
events that has occurred after the inifial recognition of the investment and that event have an
impact on the estimated futvre cash flows of the investment that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include a drop in the fair value/market value of the deb,
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in inferest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganization and where observable data indicates that
there s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in amears
or economic conditions that cocrelate with defaults. When there is any evidence of impairment,
provision for an HTM investment is datermined as the negative difference between its fair
value and amortized cost at the assessment date, Any increase/decrease in the balance of
provision is recognized in the income statement undar “Provision expense for diminutian in
value and impairment of financial assefs, doubtful recefvables and borrowing costs of loans”
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the yesr then endead

4,
4.4

$.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Laoans

Loans are nan-derivative financial assets with fixed or identifiable payments and not listed on
active market, with the exceptions of

a) The ameounts the Company has intent to immediately sell o will s2ll in 8 near future which
are classified as assels held for rading, and like those which, upon initial recognition, the
Company categorised as such recognised at fair value through profit or loss;

b) The amounts categonzed by the Company as available for sale upon initial recognition; or

) The amounts whose holders cannot recover maost of tha inifial investment value not due to
credit quality impairment and which are categorised as available for sale.

Loans are recognised initially at cost (disbuwesemeant vakue of the loans). Afler initial
racognition, loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive intarast
rate (“EIR").

Amortised cost of loans is the amount at which the loan ts measured at initial recognition
minus (-} principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (-) the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus (-) any reduction for impairment or un-callectability (if any).

Loans are subject 1o an assessment of impairment at the financial statement data. The
Company made general pravision for loans at rate of 0,75% of ioial loan balance excluding
loan balance which had been made specific provision. Specific provision made for loan is
calculated based on its estimated less which is determined by the difference between the
market value of securities used as collaterals for such loan and the loan balance. Any
increase/decraasa in the balance of provision is recognized in the income statement under
"Provision expense for diminufion in value and knpairment of financial assals, doubdfid
receivables snd borowing costs of loans".

Accrued interest |s recorded in the account "Recalvables and accruals from dividend and
imterast incame."

Fair value/market value of financial assets
Fair value/market value of the securities s determined as follows:

b For securities [except of bonds) listed on Hanol Stock Exchange and Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange, their market prices are their closing prices on the nearest trading day
preceding the date of the financial statements;

» For unlisted securities registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market
CUPCOM™), thelr market value are the average reference price within the last 30
consecutive trading days before the date of the financial statements published by the
Stock Exchange. In case the securities are not fraded in 30 days before the date of the
financial statemants;

» For delisted securibies and suspended trading securities from the sixth day aferward,
thair prices are the book value at the report date;

#  The market price for unlisted securities and secwrities unregistered for trading on the
UPCOM is the frading prices of the latest transaction on over-the-counter ("OTC") market,
bazed on financial statements of issuers as at the date of financial statemeants:
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value/market value of financial assets {continued)

® For corporate bonds listed and registered for trading. tha market price is the nearest
transaction price at the Stock Exchange within 10 days preceding the date of praparing
the financial statements. |f there are no transactans in 10 days before the date of the
financial statements, their market prices are the book value at the date of preparing the
fnancial statements,

» For government bonds, their market prices are the book value at the date of preparing
the financial statements;

»  For securities which do not have reference price from the above sources, the revaluation
is determined based on the financial performance and the book value of securities issuears
8t at the assezzment date,

Reclassification of financial assets

Reclassification when selling financial assets ather than FVTPL

When selling financial assets other than FVTPL, securities companies are required to
reclassify those financial assets to financlal assets at FVTPL,

Reciassification due to change in purposs or ability to fald

Securities companies are required to reclasaify financial assets to their applicabla categories
if their purpose or ability to hold has changed, consequenthy:

» Non-derivative financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets that are not required to
classify as financial asset at FVTPL at tha initial recognition can be classified as Inans
and other receivables or as cash and cash equivalents i the retuirements are met, The
gains or losses arsing from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL prior to the
reciassification are not allowed to be reversed.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOO-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.7

1.8

4.81

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financlal asset {or, where apphcable, part of a group of similar financial assets) Is
deracagnized when

B The rights to receive cash fliows from the asset have expired;

» The Company has transferred its righfs to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumead an obligation to pay the recesvad cash flows in full without materal dalay to 2
third panty under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards accompanying
with the assel, or

- The Company has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards accompanying with the asset but has transferrad the right to use the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
antered into & pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the riske and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset In
that case, the Company also recognises an assoclated lability, The transferred asse! and the
associated liabfity are measured on a basis that reflacts the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained,

The continued participation in transferred assets in the form of guarantee will be recognised
at smaller value between the initial carrying value of the assets and the maximum amount that
the Company is required o pay.

Long-term investments in financial assets

Invasimeants in associates
Investments in associates in which the Company has significant influence are carried at cost

Distributions from accumulated net profits of the associates ansing subsequent to the date of
acquisition are recognised in the income statement. Distributions from sources other than
from such profits are consldered a recovery of investment and are deducted 1o the cost of the
invastrment.

Provision for diminution i valve of invesimments in assosiales

Provision of the investments is made when thera i rellable evidence of the diminution in valua
of those investmenis in assocates.

Historical cost principal

The historical cost principal is an accounting principle in which Invesiments are initially
recognised at cost, then nof subsequently adjusted fof changas in the investor's share of the
investee's net assets. The income statement only reflects the investor's distributed income
from the investee's accumulated net profits arising subsequent to the date of acquisition,

Under the historical cost principal, the investments are inftially recognised at cost The
imvestor only accounts in its Income Statemant the distributions from accumulated net profits
afising subsequant to the date of acquisition. Distributions fram sources other than from such
profits are considered a recovery of investment and are deducted to the cost of the
irvastment.



VNDIRECT Securties Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.8

4.82

4.9

4.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuead)
Long-term investmeants in fnancial assets (continued)

Invastments capifal in other entities

Investments in equity instruments of other entithes are initially recognised at cost, inciuding
purchase price and directly attributable acquisition costs

Provision for loss of investments in subsidiaries is made separately for each loss investment
and is reviewed at the end of the financial year. The Company makes provision for
investments in subsidiaries If the investments are lost due to the subsidiaries’ losses, An
increase of decrease in the balance of the provisioning account is charged to financial
expenses in the year,

Recognition of morigaged financial assets

Dwring the year, the Company had mortgaged/pledged financial assets which are used as
collaterals for financial abligations of the Company.

According ta the terms and conditions of the mortgage/pledge contracts, during the valid
period of the contracts, the Company s not allowed 1o sell, transfer or uss the
mortgagedipledged assets under repurchase or swap contracts with any other third party.

In case the Company is unable to fulfil its obfigations, the mortgages/pledgee is allowed to
use the morngaged/pledged assels lo sattie the obligations of the Company after a period
specified in the morigage/pledge contracts, since the obligations due date

The martgeged/pledged assets are monitored in the Company's statement of financial
position in accordance with accounfing principles relevant to the assets’ classification.

Recelvables
Receivables are initially recordad at cost and subsequently always presented at cost

Recalvables are subject to review for impairment based on their overdue status or estimated
loss arising from undue debts of corporate debfors who have bankruptey or are under
liguidation; or of mdividual debtors who are missing, have fled, are prosecuted, detained or
tried by law enforcement bodies, are serving sentences, or is suffering from a sesious fliness
(with hospital confirmation} or have deceased, or the debt has been requested for
enforcemeant but cannot be executed due to the debtor flesing from thelr residence; the debt
has been litigated but the case resolufion has been suspended. The incurred provision
expenses are recorded in the income statermant as “Expensas for other services”.

The pravision rates for overdue recevables ars as follows:

Dverdue period FProvision rate
From over six (08) maonths 1o less than one (01) year 0%
From ana (01) year to less than bwo (02) years &%
From two (02) years to less than three (03) years T
From three (03) vears and above 100%
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

d.71

412

4.13

+4.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fixed assets
Fixed asseis are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or accurmulated amorisation

The cost of a fixed assel comprises of s purchase prnce and any directly atinbutable costs of
bringing the tangible fixed asset to working conditian for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvemants and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income
statement as incurred.

When fived assets are sold or refired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal (the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is Included In the
income statement.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation of tengible fixed assets and intangible fixed assels are
calculated on a siraight-line basks over the estimated useful [fe of each assel as follows:

Buildings and structures 10 years
Office equipment 03 - 10 years
baans of transpod, fransmission 10 vaars
Software {3 - 10 years
Leases

Whether an agreement iz determined as a property lease agreement depends on the nature
of the agreement at the beginning: whether the implementation of the agreement depends on
the usa of a certain asset and whether the agreemeant includes clauses on the use rights of
the asset.

Rental fee respective to operating leases are charged to the Income statement an a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Construction in progress
Praparies in the course of conatruction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or
for ather purposes, are carried at cost includes costs that are necessary to form the assets in

accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assels, on the same
basis as other assels, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use,
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then anded

.
4.15

4.76

417

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Frepaid expanses

Prepaid expanses, including short-tarm prepaid expenses and long-term prepaid expenses n
the statemant of financial pesition, are amortised over the period for which the amounts are
paid or the period in which economic benefits are generated in refafion to these expenses.

Barrowings and non-convertible bonds [ssued

Borrowings and nan-convertible bonds issued by the Company are recorded and stated at
cost at the end of the year.

Payables and accrued expenses
Covarad warrant payahles

Covered warrants are securities with collaterals issued by the Company which gives its halder
the right to buy an amount of an underlying security at an exercise price or to receive a sum of
money equal to the difference between the price (index) of the underlying sacurites and the
exercise price (exercise indax), when the former is higher than the latter, at the exercise time.

When covered warrants are issued, the Company is obliged to record an increase in coverad
warrant payables and monitor the number of authorized covered warrants that have not been
outstanding yet. At the end of the year, the Company revaluates the covered warrants at fair
value. The decrease in fair value of outstanding coverad warrants at fair value i comparison
with previous is recognized in “Gain from financial assets at FYTPL" (detail in “Gain from
revaluation of oulstending coverad warrant payaiie"), The increase In difference arising from
revaluation of outstanding covered warrants at far value in comparison with previous is
recognized in "Loss from financial assels af FVTPL" (detail In “Loss from revaluation of
oulstanding coverad wamant payable”),

Tha transaction costs relating o the purchase and issuance of covered warnants are raecognized
when incurred as purchase costs of financial assets in the income statement Profit or loss
mesullad from covered wamants when repurchasa, upan the maturity of coverad warrants or
when covered warrant (s recalled, are recognized under "Gain from disposal of financial assels
at FYTPL" or "Loss from disposal of financlal asseds at FYTFL" in the income statament.

The securities used as hedging for the covered warrants are monitored by the Company. At the end
of the year, securities used as hedging for the covered warrants are revaluated at fair value and the
diffarances arising from revaluabion & recorded like the revaluation of financlal assets at FVTPL.
COthver payables and accrued expenses

Other payables and accreed expenses are recognized for amounts to be pald in the future for
bonds Interest payables, goods and services received, whather or not billed fo the Company.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.

4.78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

4.18.1 Paost-employment benefits

4.18.2

4.78.3

4.12

420

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Company by the Social
Insurance Agency, which belongs Io the Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs, The Company
is required to confribute to these postemployment benefits by paying social insurance
premium in accordance with current legal reguiations. Other than that, the Company has no
furthesr abligation rekating to post-employment benefits

Severance pay

The employment period as the basis for calculation of severance allowance is the total actual
period over which the employes has worked for the employer minus the period over which the
employee participates in unemployment insurance and the period over which the employer
pays severance allowance or redundancy allowance.

Clause 5, Article B of Decree No. 145/2020/ND-CP stipulates that the salary as the basis for
calculation of severance allowance is the average sakary of the [ast 06 months before the kast
empleyment confract is terminated. In case the last emplayment contract is invalidated (the
salary specified In the contract is lower than the region-based minimum wage or kower than
the salary spacified in the collective bargaining agreement), the salary as the basis for
calculation of severance allowance shall be negotiated by both parties but must not be lower
than the region-based minimum wage or the salary specified in the collective bargaining
agreement

Linemployment insurance

According o Circular No. 28201 S/ND-CP stipulating the implementation of certain provisions
of thet Employment Law regarding Unempleyment Insurance and Article 57 of the Emgloyment
Law No. 382013/0H13, the Company is required to confribute to the unemployment
insurance at the rate of 1% of salary and wage fund of unemployment insurance joiners and
deduct 1% of monthly salary and wage of each employes to contribute to the Unemployment
Insurance Fund.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's reporting currency of VND are recorded

at the actual transaction exchangs rates of commercial banks at fransaction dates. Atthe and

aof the year, monetary balances denominated in fareign currencies are determined as follows:

»  Monetary assels are franslaied at buying exchange rate of the commercial bank whera
tha Company conducts transactions regularky;

¥ Monetary liabilities are translated at seling exchange rate of the commerncial bank where
the Company conducts transactions ragularly

All faraign exchange differences incurmed during the year and arisen from the revaluaton of

monetary accounts denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the year are taken to the
income statement,

Forward contract

The Company engages in currency transactions with service banks (foreign currency forward
transactions, foraign currancy swaps, eic) for the purpase of hedging and minimizing risks
exchange rates and future cash flows. Gainlloss arising from the transaction is recognized in
the income statement on an accrual basis.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOO-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

4,
4.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be refiably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of receipts or receivables less trade discount, rebate and salas return, The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenua from brokerage servicas

When the contract outcome can be reliably measurad, revenue is recognized by reference to
the stage of completion. Where the contract cutcome cannot be refiably measured, revenue
is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized which are recoverable.

Revenye from frading of securities

Revenue from trading of securities is determined by the difference batween the selling price
and the weighted average cost of securifies sald.

Chifver income

Revenues from iregular activities other than tumover-generating activities are racorded to
olhar incomes as stipulated by VAS 14 - “Revenue and other income”, including: Revenues
from Nguidation and sale of fixed assets; fines paid by customers for breach of contract:
coflection of insurance compensation, collection of debi which had been written off and
inciuged in the preceding year expenses; payablas recorded as revenue increase as their
owners no longer exist; collection of tax emounts which are reduced and reimbursed; and
ather revenuas.

Intarast Incame

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis (tsking into account the effective yield on the asset)
untess collectability s in doubt.

Cividemnds

Income is recognized when the Company's entitfernent as an investor to receive the dividends
is established, except for stock dividend in which only the number of shares is updated.
Other revenues from rendering sendces

Where the confract oulceme can be refiably measured, revenue is recognised by refarance
to the stage of completion.

Whera the conract outcome cannaot be reliably measured, revenue s recognised only 1o the
extent of the axpenses recognised which are recoverable.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCH

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

4.22

4.23

4,24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Borrowlng costs

Barrowing costs include accrued interest and other axpenses which are directly atirfbutable
to the Company's borrowings. Borrowing costs are recorded to the income statement for the
panod an an accrual basis,

Cost of securities sold

The Company apples moving weighted average method 1o calculate cost of proprietary
gecurities sokd.

Carporate income tax
Crrant imsame fax

Currant income tax assets and habilities for the current and prior year are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the reporting date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it retates io
items recognized directly 1o owners' aquity, in ‘which case the current income tax is alse dealt
with in owners’ eguity,

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable
right for the Company to set off current tax assets against currant tx liabilties and when the
Company intends to sefile its curent tax assels and kakilities on & net basis.

Deferred ncome fax

Deferad income tax is provided wsing for temporary differences at the reporing date betwesan
the tax base of assefs and ligbilties and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting
PUrpOseEs,

Deferred tax labilibes are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except

» Daferred tax liability arises from the mitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or tax loss) at the time of the
transaction;

k  Taxable temporary differences associated with investments In subsidiaras, associates
and interasts in joint venfures fo the extent that the Company can contral the timing of tha
reversal of the temparary difference and It is certain that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foresseable fulure.

Defarred tax assats are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, earry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax [osses, to the extent that it & probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible tamporary differences, camy forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except

» A deferred tax asset anses from the initial recognition of an assat or a liabiity in a
transaction that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or tax loss) at the time
of the transaction;

» Al deductible temporary differences arse from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and intarests in joint ventures when it is probable that the temporary differences wil
reverse in the future. predictable and taxable profit against which the tamporary difference
can be ufiised.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

4.

.24

4,25

4.26

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Corporate income tax (continuad)
Deferred income fax {continuad)

The camying amount of defarred income tax assets is reviewed at the reporting date and
reduced o a cerain extent that sufficient taxable profits will be available to alaw all or part of
the daferred income tax assets to be recovered. Previously unrecognized deferred income
fax assets are re-assessed at each reporiing date and are recognized Io the extent that it has
bacoma probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asssts to be recovernad.

Deferrad income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settied based on tax rates and
f2x laws that have been enacted at the reporting data.

Daferved tax is recorded to the income statemeant, excapt whan it relates to items recognized
directly to owners' equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealf with in camers’ eguity.
Dafarred tax assets and liabdities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
curment tax assels against currant tex fabilities and when they relate to incoma taxes levied
by the sama taxable entity and the same taxation autharity, the Company intends to settle its
current tax assels and liablities on & net basis,

Owners” aguity

Contributed eapital from shareholdars

Contributed capital from stock issuance |s recorded in Charter Capital at par value.
Undistribufed profit

Undistributed profit comprises of realised and unrealised undistributed profit.

Unrealised profit during the perod Is the diference between gain and loss arisen from
revaluation of financial assets at FYTPL or others through profit and loss in the income
statement, and the deferred income tax related Lo tha increasa in revaluation of FYTPL financial
assels and olfers.

Realised profit during the year is the net difference between total revenus and mcome, and
total expenses in the income staternent of the Company, except for gain or loss recognisad in
unrealised profit.

Fesenes

The Company uses annual profits after-tax to set up funds in accordance with the Rescluticn
of the General Meeting of Shareholders at the annual General Mesting.

Profit distribution
Met profit after corporate income tax may be distributed to investors after being approved at

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and after setting aside reserve funds in
accordance with the Company’s Charter and provisions of Vietnamese law.



VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

d.

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Earning per shara

Profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Campany®s ordinary shares is the prefitor loss
after corporate income ax far the perod after adjusting for dividends of preferred shares,
differences arising from the payment of preference shares and similar elffects of preferad
shares have been classified as equity,

The number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the current pariod and all presentation pesiods must
be adjustad for events (Excepl a patentizl conversion of ardinary shares) that cause a change
in the number of ardinary shares outstanding. ordinary shares without any change in capital,

Segment information

& segment is a distinct identifiable component of the Company that is engaged In providing
related products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment {gecgraphical division}. Each of these segments s subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of the other segments,

The Company's business segment is primarily defined based on the services provided to
investors. Management determines the geagraphical segment of the Company based on the
location of the assats.

Related parties

Parties are considarad related to the Company If one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to confrol the other party or significant influence over the other party in making financial and
oparating decisions, or when the Company and the other party are subject to common cantrol
or significant infiuence. The above stakehelders can be companies or individuals, including
clase membars of their families

Relatad parties are those a5 defined by the Securities Law, the Enterprise Law, and the
amended and supplemented documents in effect at each perod.

Nil balancas
Hems or balances required by Circular Mo, 210v2014/TT-BTC dated 30 December 2014,
Circular Mo, 3242016 T-BTC dated 27 Decamber 2016 and Circular Mo, 114/20210TT-BTC

dated 17 December 2021 issuad by the Ministry of Finance that are not shown in these
financial statements indicate nil balances.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a5 at 31 Deacamber 2024 and for the year then ended
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cinrrency. VIND
Ending balance __Beginning Balance
Cash T34 468 B60 472 2667 088,275,037
- Cash at banks F33.705 141,683 2 BET 173,208, 658
- Clearing deposits and payment far
secunties fransaction 761,518,783 i15.06% 369
Cash eguivalents 146, 709,000,000  2,194,000,000,000
- Cash af banks with oniginal matunty of
fua mare than 03 months 148 700,000,000 2184000 000, 000
Total B31,175,660,472 4 ,861,988,279,037

6. VALUE AND VOLUME OF TRADING DURING THE YEAR

Valume of trading Value of trading

duvireg the year during the year

(Uit} (Aittion VIND)

a. Of the Company 3,168,060.430 296 683,470
- Shares 265 151,456 ¥.521,698

- Bonds 1,935,600,801 280,918,044

- Other securities 873,317,183 7845 72T
b. Of the Investors 30,081,415,428 1,085,818,946
- Shares 27,520,886, 714 802,546, 757

- Bonds 440,177,188 70,594,018

- Other securities 2,130,341,525 412 TR, 175
Total 33,255,484 858 1,382,602,416
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VMDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

T. FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Concepts of financial agsets

Cast

Cost of a financial asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid, disbursed or payable
for such financial asset at its initial recognition. The transaction casts ncurred directly from
the purchase of financial asset might or might not be incleded in the cost af the financial asset,
dapanding on the category that the financial asset is classified in,

Fair valvadmarke! value

The fair value or market value of a financial asset is the price at which the financial asset
woulld be traded voluntarily between knowledgeable parties on an arm's length basis.

The fair value/market value of securities is determined using the method described in
Note 4.5

Amaorfized cogt

Amoriised cost of a financial investment (which is debt instrument) is the amount at which the
financial asset ks measured at initial recognition minus (-) principal repayments, plus () ar
minus (-] the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference
betwaen that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any raduction for impairment
ar un-coliectability (if any).

Far presentation purpose, provision for diminution in value or un-collectabiiy of financial
assels is recognised in “Frovision for impairment of financial assels and morgage assets” in
the statement of inanckal position.

Carmang amount
Carrying amount of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is recognised
in the statement of financial position. Carrying amount of a financial asset might be recegnised

at fair value (for FVTPL) or at amartised cost {for HTM investments and loans), depending on
the category that the financial asset is classified.

33



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

FINANCIAL ASSETS (continusd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPLY)

Listed shares and fund certificates

VPB

STB

FPT

Cthar shares and fund certificatas

Em shares used as hedging for covered warrants
PB

578

FPT

Cithers

Unlisted shares and fund certificates

THRE

WNDEF

WHOAF

Oher zhares and fund carificates

Listed honds

Unlisted bonds

Certificates of deposit
Total

BOS-CTCK
Currency: WND

Ending balance P Baginning Balance
Cosl Fair value Cos! Fair valle
1,442 424 222 565  1,428,820,196 532 1,107,852472,120 1,153 4264595964
448,323 523 350 418,203,608 600 455 482 188,180 418 927,449 600
103,830, 420,030 121,722,731 100 £,804,116,692 2,674,476 561
B8, 140 757, 282 £5,819,222,600 8,730,708,808 &.219,960,567

821,128,521,103

1,905,644,264,685
1,345 490 000,000
105,200,000,000
50,500, 000,000
400,454 964,885
3,985,606,183,773

§13,074,633,332

1,800,049,784,551
1,349 420,000,000
138,758,022 602
B0,331,700,000
330,472 061,949
3,987,783,221,122

B0, B34 378 350
127,464,078,913
48 132 541,880
31,113,838,128
20,791,558 474
20,425, 740,421
1,111,431,641,735
450,000,000,000

722 604,508,936
123,410,809,726
42 430,020,000
28.675,384,189
21,056,897 533
29,348 448 004
1,162,241,954 895
450, 000,000,000

106,200,000,000 130,141,004, 389

50,500,000,000 70,037,500,000
G05,731.641,735 512,063, 360,506
Ga87,194,811,995 G86,121,084,799

10,630,636,085,581 10,630,536,085,581  7,546,995,264,122 7,646,995,264,122
6,562,010,719,000  6,562,010,719,000  6,057,793,148,084 _ 6,057,793,148,084
24,526,222,175,804 _24,519,200,006,785 _16,638,731,416,968 _16,729,988,737,590
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK,

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS (cantinued)

F i Held-to-maturity Investments ("HTM")
Currency: VND

Ending balance Beginning Balance

Short = term held-lo-maturity investments
= Term deposits with original term of over 03 meonths and

remaining term of no mora than 12 manths 5,560,973,000,000 7.432,445,000,000
Long = term hald-to-maturity investments
= Term deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months - 201,650,000,000
Total (*} §,560,97 3,000,000 7.634,085,000,000

(*) The balence reflects term deposits at commercial banks with interest rates renging from 4.60% p.a. to 8.00% p.a. (as of 31 Decamber 2023: from
4.20% p.a. o 10.30% p.a)

72 Loans
Currency: WND
Ending balance Beginning Balance
Cost Fair value [ Cast Fair value (")
Fecetvables from margin activities 10,148,543,290,584 10,106,403 813,017 5,911,807 420,780 9,859 210,816,361
Advances to investors 185,084,604 698 185,084 604 698 373,984 415,540 373,084 415 540
Total 10,343,627 965,292 10,301 488,507,716  10,265791,835320  10,243,105,231,901

{*} The falr value of loans is measured at cost less specific provision for doubtful debts.

1]



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

T4

FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Change in market values of financial assets (FVTPL)

Financial assels

Ravaiuation differanca

BOO-CTCK

Curency; VND

As at 31 December 2024

Listed shares and fund cerificates
Unlisted shares and fund certificates
Listed bonds

Linlisted bands

Certificates of daposits
Total

Az at 31 December 2023

Listed shares and fund certificates

Listed shares usad as hedging for covered warmants
Unlisted shares and fund certificates

Listed bonds

Unlisted bonds

Cerificates of depasits

Tatal

Cost incraase Decrease Revaluafion vaiue

1,442,424 2737 585 43,586,392 383 (47,200,418,416) 1,438 820,196,632
1,805,844 064 285 68,276,753,849 {73,871,834,183) 1,800,048, 784,551
3,966.606,183,773 2,B58,758,352 (4582,718,002) 3,987,783,221,122
10,630,536,085,581 - - 10,630,535,085,581
@,562,010,719,000 % - 6,562,010,718,000
24 526,222 175,804 114,532 802,584 {(121,555,071,602) _ 24,519,200,006,788

1,107,852,472.120
127,454 075,813
1,111,431,641,735
87 184,811,805
7,546,095 264,122
8,057,793,148,084

956,7561,135,708
1,455,476,197
87,534,786 883

(51,187.112,865)
(5,508,745, 384)
(36,724,473 ,823)
(1,073,747,198)

1,153 426,495,564
123,410, 809,728
1,182,241,054,805
GaG5, 121,064, 799
7,546,995 284,122
8,057.703,148 084

16,638,731,416,969

185,751,308, 639

(94,494,079, 268)

16,729,988,737,690

36
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuead)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

BOG-CTCK

g. FPROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND MORTGAGED ASSETS

Pravision for impairmant of loans
- Specific provision
- Genaral proviskare

Total

8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Short-term

1.
£

B B

Receivables from dispasal of financial assets
Raceivables and accruals from dividends
and inferest income fram financial assets
In which:

= Dividend and inferest due lo receive

- Accruals from undue dividends anhd

interest income

Advances to suppliers
Receivables from services provided by the
Company
Crther racaivablas
Provision for doubiful receivables

Long-term

1.

Long-term receiables

Total

ar

Currency: YND

Ending balance Beginmng Balance
42,138 477,577 42,556,604,418
80,148,779 444 76,781,303, 205
122,288,257,021  119,377,907,624
Currency. VAND

Ending balance Beginning Balance
1,752,664, 385,008 1,088,015.918,020
655,640,757 453 22,095,265, 742
1,172, 704,626,322 916,578,322 490
85,427,412 3682 85,427,412 362
1,0F7.277,213,960  §21,150,810,128
31.617,305.015 3.652,779,272
178,047, 781,530  134,658,683,926
7,902 515,693 36,840,257 831
(193,148,601,0058) (27,710,391,241)
91,716,310,944  90,236,858,883
81,716.310,944 80,236 853,880

1,844,380,695,952

1,178,252,776,900




WNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

8,  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE {confinusd)

Detailz of pravision for doubHul receivables:

Trung Mam Constructian
Invastmant Joint Stock Company
Trung Mam Renswable Energy
Corparation

Trung Nam Dak Lak 1 Wind
Power Jaint Stock Company
BEAV Anti-Virus Software Joint
Stock Company

Other receivablas

Tatal

BOA-CTCK

Currency. VIND
Beginning halance _Diring the year Ending balance

Doyhtid debls Provision Addition Raovarsal FProvizion Doubffil debls
- - 06,602,631,426 - DEG02831426 229575723006

- - 43,006,848 315 = 43,008,849.315  BB,013688 630
. - 29,400,000,000 - 29400000000  53,800,000000
I 5E2 456 875 22003719812 = (22,083 7158.812) - -
56188571 42% GE18 671 4208 18,522 248 BAG - __ia.ma.azu.im a7, 340,000,875
37,478,128,204 27,710,381 241 1B7,631,929,676 (22,093,715.812) 193,148,601,006 441,729422511

a8



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as gt 31 December 2024 and far the year then ended

10,

1.

PREPAID EXPENSES

a. Short-term

Office rental expenses

Software axpanses

Office rencvation and repairing expansas
Cther expenses

Total

b. Long-term

Office renovation and repairing expenses
Software expenses

Oher expansas

Tools and offica supplies expensa

Total

DEPOSITS, COLLATERALS AND PLEDGES

a. Short-term

Vietnam Mational Apiculture
Juint Stock Company ()
Others

Total

b. Long-term
Others

Total

BOS-CTCK
Currency. VND

___Ending balance Beginning balance
3,931,018,600 3050355274
15,228,106 403 B, 564,844,053
32,317,811 65,714,871
13,778,150,062 GO7T,050, 268
32,570,692,866 10,390 964, 466
596, 352,614 7,748, 784,724
18,575,390 445 5,592 257 622
B599,485 031 1,502.414 120
1,557,628.2656  3.430,892,381

27,630,865,348 19,764,348 847
Curency: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance
B0,000,000,000  B0,000,000,000
26,245,970,000  15,585.217,160
106,245,970,000  96,585,217,160
3,104 972 428 3,303 442 428
3,104,972 428 3,383,442 428

i*} The interest-ree deposit to purchase real estate for the purpose of establishing the
Company's headguarters, with remaining term not exceeding 12 months.
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continusd)
as al 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

12. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

Currancy” WD
Ending balance Beginning talance

Historical cost Provigion Fair vaiue Historical cost Provision Falr valug

fnvestmenis N associates 814,505,332 000 - 914,505,332 000 835 115,332,000 - B38,115.332.000
- Post-Telecommunicalion Joint - Stock

Insurance Coporalion G836, 115322000 = B3 715332000 836715332000 - 838 175,332,000

- Goidsun Food Joinf glock Commpany 78,390,000 200 - 78,390 000,000 = - -

Other long-term Investments _ 34,188,520,000  (4,229,391,388) 29,929.128,612 e 675,280,000 (3,710,796,4973) 42,504 483,027

Total 848,663,8652,000 (4,229,391,388) 944,434 460,512 B72,780,612,000 (3,710,796,973) 865,079,815027

40
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14.

VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Currency. VMD
Means of
guidings and franspod,
structures  Office eguipment lransmisson Tafal
Cost
Beginning
balance 22312 126,483 185,180,077 507 B 460,180,940 193,971,384, 930
Additions = 19,774,080, 500 = 19,7T4,080,500
Disposals = [E.4T4.19D.E_'|"_I}J_. (8,474, 190,870
Ending balance ]1..!12.115,4& 176,498 967 337 £ 460,180,940 205,271,274,T60
Accumulated
depreciation
Beginning
balance 20915254 78S 119,510,365 023 1,018, 723,232 141 444 343 044
Depreciation for
the year 1,197,318,505 20400486 549 645 018,084 31,333, B23.634
Disposals - _(B.AET,324,004) - {B.467 324,004)
Ending balance 22 112,673,384 140,533,527,968  1,664,741,326 164,310,842,678
Het book value
Beginning
balance 1,396,671,684  45,688,712.484 5441.457,708  52,527,041,B88
Ending balance 199,853,089 35965439369  4,705439,814 40,960,432 082
Additional information on tangible fixed sssets:
Cumancy: VAD
Ending balance Baginning Balance
Cost of tangible fived assets which ang fully
l:l-EFII'B:iETEd but sl in use 1 iﬂ.ﬁ?u,l:ﬁ 2,610 TE,H?,M.#DE
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Currsncy: VND
Software
Cost -
Beginning balance 164,678, 758,279
Additions 18.118.066.000
Ending balance 182,797,624,279
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning balance 111,172,797, 081
Amaortisaticn for the year 2B 4085 205 430
Ending balance 139,660,002,511
Net book value
Beginning balance - 53,506 961,186
Ending balance 43,128,821,768
Additional information on intangible fixed assets:
Curmency: YND

Ending balance  Beginning Balance

Coat of intanglble fixed assets which are fully
amortised but stll in use

08.171,658,614

B8 473,801,114

41
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

15.

16.

17.

PAYMENT FOR SETTLEMENT ASSISTANCE FUND

Payment for Settlement Assistance Fund represents the amounts deposited at the Vistnam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corparation ("VSDC).

According to prevailing requiation of WSDC, the Company must depasit an inftial amount of
WND 120 million at V50T and pay an addition of 0.01% of the iotal amount of brokered
securities in the previous year, but not over YND 2.5 billion per annum. The maximum
contribution of each custody to the Setfliement Assistance Fund is VND 20 billion for custody
mambers who are the Company with trading securities and brokerage activities.

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

Other lang-term assets reflect the contributions to the Derivatives Clearing Fund. According

to the Regulation on the Management and Use of the Derivatives Clearing Fund isued

together with Decision No. §7/QD-VSD dated 23 March 2017 by the Vietnam Securities

Depository and Clearing Corporation, the minimum initial contribution is 15 billion YND far
commoen clearing members.

Currency. WD

Ending balance  Beginning Balance

Deposits for derivative compansation fund
- Initial payment 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000

COLLATERALS AND PLEDGED ASSETS

As of 31 December 2024, the Company was pledging the following assets for short-term
foans:

Currancy: YND
Assels Beginning balance Ending Balance Furposes
Short-term
Short-term
Short-term financial assets  15,049,000,000,000 11,225,000,000,000 borrawings
Long-term
Shart-term
Long-term financial assets - 200,000,000,000 bomowings
Total 15,049,000,000,000 11,425,000,000,000
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended
18. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND FINAMCE LEASE LIABILITIES
Currancy: VND
Intenest rate 5 Addithen Rapayrme
[Er ST Beginming balahoe g tha waar during the year Ending batanca
Shert-term boerfowings in VHD 2.0% - T.A% 20,468, 464,164,989 125,908,167 988,860 (123540407518, 533}  Z1.436.2144,635,316
= Joil Block Commancial Benk for Forsign
Trads of Weinam 8, 240,000,000, 000 11,520 000,000,000 (17,944, 000, 000,000} «, 876,000, 500,000
- Joi Stock Commercial Bark for imvesimant
and Development of Viginam 2153000000000 39,547 AT 402013 (37,718, 774,492,068} 4 582,199, 999,045
= Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
fraiatny and Trade 3075000000000 28 5420000000 000 (27,567,000, 000,000 o, (K50, 000, 000,000
= Cither craai mshtulions 5485000000000 30 068079, 500757 (37,113,505 063,835 8307, 274,436,862
- Other barrewings 4, 54E 484,164,089 6,372 113,606000 (10196827, 062.570) B20, 770,198,508
Total [%) 20,468 484 164,888 125,908,167 088, 8680 (123,940,407 ,518,633) 22,436,244 635 316

{*) During the year, borrowings are made for the purpese of supplementing working capital.



WVNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then snded
18, BONDS ISSUED
Cumrency. YND
Ending balance  Beginning Balance
Shart-term bonds isswed AG0 000,000,000 400,000,000, 000
Leng-term bonds issued 400,000,000, 600
Total (*) 400,000,000,000 £00,000,000,000

{*) As of 31 December 2024, the bonds issued by the Company had an original term of 38 months
with interest rate of 7.58% pa. (as of 31 December 2023: oniginal tarms ranging from 24
months to 36 months with interest rates from 10.00% p.a. to 10.20% p.a). The batance of
issued bonds is classified by the Campany as shor-term and long-teem based on the remaining

term of the bonds at the end of the year and the beginning of the year

20. PAYAELES FOR SECURITIES TRADING ACTIVITIES

Currency: VND
Ending balance  Baginning Balancs
Payablas to the Stock Exchange and VSDC 14,441,398 117 18,542,471,080
Payables for purchase of financial assets (*) 1,092,034 568 180 TEY, 223382 0407
Cutstanding covered warrant payables - 35,829,563.000
Tatal 1,113,475,966,297 821,595,397 087
{*) Payables on TO for secunties trading transaction at the end of the year.
21. STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS
Cirrrancy: WD
Fayabe FPaid
Hams _Beginning balance it B oiar in the yesr  Ending balance
Value added ta on
domastic sanices 230,557,660 1,148,525 702 (1,243,650,635) 138,242, 736
Corporale incoms tax
{Mede 20.T) 195,241,321 644 300,520138,573 (3B5240,177,085) 190,821 262 832
Personal income fex 45,727 359,570 605695009 674 (520,251.413,908) 32,170,955 347
Cither taxes 1166317630 38087877 8688  (34,621,275,062) 4.-151.92D.a_1§1
Tatal 243,367,566, T2 935487 552 338 (542256, 717.586) 236 583,401,372
22, SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES
Curancy: WND
_Ending bafance _ Beginning balance
Interest payable to credit institutions and others 31,474,821,610 B80.558,671,436
Interest payabbe for bonds Issued 24904 111,453 68.410,258,905
Cihers 2.016,580,021 3,605,967 949
Total 58,395,523,084 150,575,598,290
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VNDIRECT Securities Corparation

MOTES TQO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cantinued)

83 at 31 Decemnber 2024 and for the year then ended

BO9-CTCK

3. DEFERRED CORPORATE INCOME TAX PAYAELES

Deferred corporate income tax payables arise due to following temporary differences that are
non-deductibleftaxable in terms of corparata income tax:

Deferred income tax arising from revatuation of
fnancial assets at FVTPL which are
temporarily non-taxshis

Deferred income lax arising from revaluation of
outstanding covered warrant payables which
are temporarily non-taxabla

Deferred income tax arising from revaluaton of
financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) before the reclassification from
FYTPL to Investments in assaciates

Total

24.  OWNERS' EQUITY
2.1 Undistributed profit

Realised profit after tax
Unrealised profit

Total

45

Cinrancy. UND
Ending balance  Beginning Balance

(1,404 433 523) 18,251 454,108

865,138,560

78,629,524 624 TH.B29.524 624

77,225,090,801 97,845,127 680

Currency: WND

Ending balance  Beginning Balance

4,183,340,328 482 3,938,035 504 654
302,900,353,209 381,384,510, 760

4,452,240,691,671  4,329,421,015 454




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
as at 51 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

24. OWNERS' EQUITY (continued)

24.2 Changes in owners"' equity

Cinrravey: VIND

Sham capital Shave premitm Treasury sharas  Undislribuled profit Toral

As at 01 January 2023 12,178 440,090,000 14,508,178 {424 610,588) 2307,170,095,476 14,485,200,083,066

Profit after tax for the year - - - 2022250010978 2022250918,678

Transactions in treasury shares - (56,086, 638) 424,610,588 - 368,523,950

As at 31 Decembaer 2023 12,178,440,080,000 {41,578,450) - 4329421015454 16,507,819,5626,994
Issuance of shares io increase capital

in the year (*) 2,435,665,320,000 - - 2435668 320,000

Profit after tax for the year i :
Issuance of shares to pay dividends (7} 608,8682,670.000 - (508,882,870,000) -
Dividends paid on cash {**) - - 1761,145,954,000) (761,140,954 000)

- 1,718,425.030,212 1,718,425030,212
Share issuance costs . (129,600,000 -

{128,500,000}
Setting up bonus and welfare fund
** - - _ (185,562,729,995)  (185,562,729,896)
As at 31 December 2024 15,222,998,080,000 {171,078, 460) - 4,492 240,691,671 19,715,068,683,211

i} According to Resolution No, 4452023/NQ-DHDCD dated 17 June 2023, of the Annual General Shareholders Meeting in 2023 regarding the
distribution of profits for the year 2022 and the offering and issuance of shares.

(**) According to Resolution Mo, 566/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated 28 June 2024, of the Annuai General Shareholders Meating in 2024 regarding the
payment of cash dividends for the year 2023,

{***) According to Decision No. 645-1/2024/Q0-VNDIRECT dated 08 June 2024 of the Chairwoman of the Board of Directors regarding the satting
up of bonus and welfare fund of 2023,

-



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

24,
24.3

244

OWNERS' EQUITY {continued)

Distribution of income to shareholders or capital contributors

Undistributed realized profit at the beginning
of the year (as at 01 January 2024 and
M January 2023)

Fealizad prafit during the vear

Profit basis of distributed to shareholders or
capital coninbutors at the end of the year
({31={1+{2h

Appropriation made from prafit

Setting up bonus and welfare fund

Profit distributed to shareholders or capital
contributors or capital contribulors during
the year as per Fesolution of General
Sharehoiders Meating

. Tax payables on dividend distributed to

investars
Total income distributed to sharehalders or
capital contributors ((7}={5}-(8)}

Shares

Authorized shares
Shares issued and fully contributed

-

Ordinary shares

Dutstanding shares

-

Oirdliary shares

47

BOS-CTCK

Currency. VND

Ending balance _ Beginning Bafance

3,838,036,504 694
1,800,908, 177,763

5,738,045 682 457
(185,562,728, 985)
(185,562 729,955)

(761,149 954_000)
(23,265,959,875)
(737.883,994,125)

2083 825795 138
1,854,111,200,556

3,838,036 504,694

Uit Mumber af Shams

Ending balance  Beginrming Salance

1,522,200,008
1,522,299,908
1,522 299 808

1,522,299 908
1.522 298 808

1,217,844,009
1,217.644,008
1,217, 844,000

1,217 844,009
1,.217,844,009



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year than ended

23,
251

25.2

253

25.4

25.5

25.6

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

BOS-CTCK

Financial assets listediregistered for trading at Vietnam Securities Deposftory and

Clearing Corporation ("WSDC") of the Company

Currency; WND
Ending balance  Baginning balance
£204.492 170,000  7,464,001,110,000

Linrestricted financial assats

Mortgaged financial assels 2,241,160,550,000

132,180,550,000

25,883,830,000

Blocked financial assals 70,000,000,000
Financlal assets awaiting settlement 4675, 828,000,000
Total 10,981,481,720,000

7,622,045,590,000

Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSDC of the Company

Currancy: VD
Ending balance _ Beginning balance
Unrestricted and non-traded financial assets
deposited at VSDC 325.032,290,000 407,184 630,000
Financial assets awaiting seftfement of the Company
Currency. VWD
Ending balance  Beginming balance
Shares and coverad warrants 950,000,000 75,254.440,000
Bonds 1,055,853 400,000 503,040,500,000
Taotal 1,056,813,400,000 E78,294,940,000

Financial assets which have not been deposited at VSDC of the Company

Cumancy! VIND
Ending balance  Beglhning balance
Fund certificates 235 098, 350,00 196,098,350 000
Shares 1,366,773,540,000 586,021,280,000
Bonds 3,780 401,000,000 S35 716,100,000
Total 5,383,272,890,000  1,747,837,730,000
Financial assets entitled to the rights of the Company
Cumency. VIND
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Dividends in shares, bonus shares, and stock
Financial assels awaiting settlemrent of investors
Currency: VND
Ending balance  Beginning balance

Shares, bonds, covered warmants and fund

cenificates 560,198,130,000

845 150,877,000
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WVNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

25,

25.7

25.8

259

2510

2511

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS {continued)

Financial assets which have not been deposited at VSDC of investors

Fured certificates
Shares
Bonds

Total

Financial asseis entithed to the rights of investors

Stock dividends, bonus shares, and stock
purchase rights

Investors' deposits

Investors” deposits for securities trading

a-:h'n.rrhes managed by the Company
Dornestlc investors' deposits for secunties
trading aciivities managed by the
Cornpany
Farsign investors' deposits for securitiss
frading activiies managed by fhe
Company

Imvesiors” escrow depasits at WVSDC

Imvestors' synthesizing deposits for securities

frading aciivities

Total

Deposits of securities issuers

Deposits for dividends, bond principals and
interasi payments of securities Issuers

Investor payables of the Company

Payabies to investors - investors’ deposits for

securities trading activities managad by the

Company

- Payables lo domestic invesfors

- Payables fo foreign imvestors

- Payabiss fo investors' escrow deposits af
VEDC

Total

45

BO9-CTCK

Curmmency: VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance
376,888,451,000 294,631,935,500
35,974,604, 770,000 36,845,654,770,000
159, 855,000,000 600, 704,000,000
36,553,388,2231,000 37,744,990,705,500
Cumency. WD

Ending balance _ Beginning balance
195,075,580,000 202 234,500,000
Currency: VND

Ending balance  Beginning balance

4,163,803,180,315

3,800,333, 368 464

263,550 530 851
151,281 513,760

4,335,470 285 643

3,555,284, 495,465

776, 185,790,178
238,671,595 977

1.004,686,500,833 1,792,222 701 362
5409,663,213,908  6,366,265,072,982
Currancy: VND

Ending bafance  Beginning balance
191,878,233 472,311,850
Currency: VND

Ending balance _ Beginning balance
5,412,0662,315436  6,366414.202, 786
4,897,820,970,825 5351656416631
363, 559,830,857 776,185 780,178

151,281,513, 760

238,571,995,977

5,412,662,315.436

§,366,414,202,735




WVNDIRECT Securities Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

25.
25.12

DISCLOSURE ON OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)

Dividend, bond principal and Interest payables

Dividend, bond principal and interest payables

25.13 Payables of investors for services provided by the Company

25,14

Payablas for securities brokerage fee and
trading fee

Payables of investors for margin loans

Payatiles for margin activities

Payables for margin loan principals (Nate 7.3)

- Payablss for margin foan principals of
domestic investors

Payables for margin loan interest

- Papables for margini loan interasts of
damestic investors

Payables for principals of advances to

investors (Nofe 7.3)

«  Payablas for principals of advances fo
damestic invesins

- Payables for principals of advances fo
faraign invesiors

Total

BOS-CTCK

Currency: WD

Ending balance  Beginning balance
191,878,233 472 311,850
Curency: VWD

Ending balance _ Beginning balance
1,171,173.917 B4, BR0 547
Currency: WND

Ending balance  Baginning balance
10,633,658,576,399 10,128,927 ,380,534

10,148,543 290,594

10,748,543 290, 594
385,015,287 805

385075 287,605

9,911,807 420,780

9.911,807.420, 780
217,119.958.754

217,118,959, 754

195,084,694,608  373,984,415,540
195081465423 373,112,880,291
3,229,275 B71,535,249
10,728,643,273,097  10,502,911,796,074




26,

267

VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
GAIN/LOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS
Gainfloss) from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL
Average Waighted aversge cost Galndloss) from Geindless) from
aeliing &l e and of aisoosal of the dizsposal of e
Chuaslity price Froceeds ransaction date CUITER year prewous year
Mg, Financial assels Unit  YINDW i e, VD D D
I  GalN
1 Lisied shares 58,895,058 34,705 2.380,262,068 250 2,193 0548 481 448 197,163 588, 801 TH 666 076 &85
2 Linkzted shares 60,011 19,664 1,180,085,800 1,152.212,284 27 8va 53 2687 508,000
3 Listed bonds 328 063420 109,357 35,675 860,053 880 35, 76D, 388 BE0, 451 06 571,183,438 183,041,082, 195
4 Unlisted bands and carfificates
of deposit 211,748,125 808888 107.025,838.971,883 106,505,347 065,528 1,229,251 9164358 1 742 (45387 833
5 Index futures conlracts - - - E: Bl 500, 740, 000 40 400, 240,000
& Listed warrants 289, 084 200 asa 251,753,086 400 205, 6A2 511,554 53,088, 725,154 154,404,047 000
Total gain 898,564,812 146,444,794,266,302  144,976,708,421,246  1,640,445035384  2,094,804,454,764
il LOSS
1 Listed sharss 65,382 030 26 931 1,490, 716,423 350 1.677.170,416.606 (56,452,003, 258) (23,564 433 364)
2 Linflsted shares 4 256,078 12,012 81,122,514.200 137 BB 180,000 (85,725,665 A00) (274,880 600)
3 Listed bonds J2E563.800 115403  45995413844.463  45,073,700,308,735 (78,286,664,272)  (137,151,546,018)
4 LinEsted bonds and cerlificabes
of deposit 50,945 044 170,958 8, 708,478,036, 731 8,813,413,400 207 (103,537 373,476) (340,427 024 451}
] Index fubures confracts - - - = (54,587 650,000) (25,304,074 000
& Listed warrants 258,423,800 1,884 468432 417,000 A5 482 3717 600 (43,050,080 400) (5,554 873,300
Teotal loss M 56,736,181,034, 744 57.047,623,622,148 (453 550, 446 204) {541,397, T37,633)
Total 1,666,103,264 203,180,855,301,046 _ 202,024,333,053,384 _ 1.186,494,589,160  1,553.406,717,151

1)



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year than ended
26. GAINNLOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
26.2 Gainf{less) from revaluation of financial assets
Currency: WND
Revalvation Revaluation Net gifference
oifference as af  differance as at the adiusted in the
No. Flnancial assefs Cost Fair value the end of the year beginning of the year  accounting year
I FVTPL
1 Listed shares and fund
certificatas 1,442,424 222 565 1,438,820,196,532 (3,604,026,033) 45,574 023,844  (48,178,048,877)
2 Listed shares used a& hedging
for coversd warrants - » . (4,053,260, 187) 4,063.269,187
3 Unlisted shares and fund
certificates 1,905,844, 064 885  1,900,045,784 551 (5,595, 180,334} 50.810,313,070 (55,406,493 494)
4 Listed bonds 3,085,606,183,773 3,887,783,221,122 2,177,037,345 (1,073,747 196) 3,250,784, 545
E Linlistad bonds 10,630,536,085, 581 10,630,538,085,581 - - -
&  Carificates of deposit §,562,010,719,000 6,582,010,719,000 g . -
Total 24,526,222 175804 24,519,200,008, 788 {7,022,169,108) 81,257,320,631 (98,279,488,639)




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

26. GAIN/ILOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS {cantinued)
26.3  Dividend, interest income from financial assefs at FVTPL, HTM, loans and receivables

Ceumeney: VIND

Current yaar Frewious year

From financial assets at FYTPL 414,018,945 216 545,677 855, 892
From financial assets at HTM 421,441,706 902 505,980, 707 068
From loans and receivables 1.254,855,005,185 1,154,085 633,047
Total 2,090,315,668,303  2,205.753,286,507

27, PROVISION EXPENSE FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE AND IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS, DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES AND BORROWING COSTS OF LOANS

Crrrency: VIND
Cuvrent year Previous year

Provision expense/|{reversal) for impairment
of lnans 2,910,340,387  (111,002,061,418)

Provision expenses for  uncollectible

receivabiles related to interest from financial
assets and receivables 127 410, T66 BET 22093719 812

Total 130,321,118,264 (8B,909,241,6086)

a3



VNDIRECT Securties Corporation

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)

as at 31 December 2024 and for tha year than ended

28,

OPERATING EXPENSES

Expenses far proprietary trading

Expenszes for brokerage senvices

Expenses for underwriting and issuance
agency sernvices

Expenses for securities investment advisary
saMiCEs

Expenses for securibes custodian services
Expenses for other fingncial advisory services
Expenses for other services

Total

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES BY TYPES

Expensas for securities brokerage activities
Expensea for securities custodian services
Salary and allowances

Expense for office supplies

Expense for tooks and supplies

Depreciation and amoriization expenses
External services expenses

Cther expensas

Expenses for provision and settlement of
devaluation of bad debts relating fo securities
services provided

Total

BDO-CTCKE

Currency: WND

Curent ear FPrewvious year
§1,389.156,101 34,327 608 913

468,171,485 937

§15.494.378,612

B,043,500,778 B,264 BBZ 221
480, 280,308 535,415,223
30,514 060,783 28,812.669,357
31,537,599,000 25 302 442, TBS
138,401,770,807 ?4.5?3.925:51_5_
730,537,862,714 TET 262 542 806
Corrency: YND

Current year Frevious year
316,264 120,175 449, 537 603,665
30,008 499,131 28,812 889 357
240 947 533,622 224 098 237 615
165,227,824 185,901,112
1,411,880,800 3,490,794 633
339,660,201 58415 821
5.2B0,7a7.810 8,850,529 481
76,000 887,352 71.626971.212

B0,121,162,708

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY

Salary and alloweances

Expense for office rental axpeanse
Expensa for office supplies

Expense for tocls and supplies
Depreciation and amaortization expenses
External service expansas

Cther expenses

Tatal

730,537,862,714 T87,262,542,806
Curraney: YWD

Current yvear Previous year
78,010,8921,214 171,756,324, 7648
50,840.875,914 60,224 042 361
489 TES 450 380,542 503
2,475,393.672 4 872 785 BEE
59,450 368,257 44 4365 500,748
261,950,640,878 148,275,711,052
e, 350,000 18,728,000
453,311,535,893 430,067 ,613,400




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

0.

201

CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Corporate incorme tax (“CIT")

The tax returns filed by the Company are subject to examination by the tax authorities. As the
application of tex laws and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, the amounts
reported in the financial statements coubd change later upan final determination by the tax
Authorities.

The current tax payables are based on taxable profit of the current year, The taxable profit of
thve Company differs from the profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes
iterna of income ar expense that are taxable or deductible in ather years and it further excludes
items that are not texable or deductible. The Company’s current tax payables are calcuiated
using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the accounting year. The Company is
required to fulfil its corporate Income tax abfigation with the current tax rate of 20% on the

iotal taxabie profit according fo Circular No. TB2014/TT-BTC dated 02 August 2014.

The estimated current corparate income tax is representad in the table below:

Currancy: VND

Cren! year Provicus yaar

Profit before tax 2,088,324,132,297 2482,342,451,973

Adjustments 1o accounting profit 15, 165,553,942  (349,141,138,775)

Incregses B14 037 317,887 956,810, 786,712
- Increases in revalualion of covened warran!

payablas A4 BT 174, 200 B.912 795 800

- Decreases i revaiuation of FVTPL 752023, 183,659 843 607 842 876

- Provision for impakment of loans 2,810,349,307 -

- Non-deductible fax expenses 4, 432,610,731 4,290,748,038

Decreasas (788,871,764, (45) {1,3-55,951,925,#5?}

- Income from tax exempied aclivillas —
dividends

- Increases in revalyation of FYTFL

- Reversal of loan provisians

- Dacreazes in revalvalion of covered wamant

{95,282 500, 625)
(653, 743,694,020

=

{32,254, 288, 355)
(1,148,956, 786, 104)
(111,002 961, 418)

payables (49,845,473 400) {13,737,850,600)
Estimated current taxable income 2,103 489,686,239  2,133,201,312,138
Corporate income tax rate 20% 20%
Estimated CIT expenses 420,697,937,248 426,640,262 440
CIT payable at the beginning of the year 195,241,321,844 127,066 682 260
Adjustment for tax reduction from prior year (30,177,708,275) {8,583,658,051)
CIT paid in the year (385,040,177 ,985)  (340,011,064,805)
CIT payable at the end of the year 199,821,262,832 195,241,321,844




VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

30,
I0.2

1.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred corporate ncome tax (MCIT")
Movement of deferred CIT during the year i5 as follows:

Currency. YND
Currenf year Previous year
Deferred corporate income tax
Beginning balance 57 845,127 BEY 55,6811,200,083
Deferred CIT arising from the revaluation of financial
assels at FWTPL (19.655,8087,0928) (37,550 735 OTE)
Deferred CIT arising from the revalustion of
cutstanding covensd warranis (953,138, 960) 985 138,950
Beferrad CIT ansing from reclassification of financial
assels &t falr value through profit and koss (FYTPL) to
investments in associabes - 78,640,524 624
Ending balance 77,225,090,601 57,846,127.689

The Company recognized the deferred income tax expense in the income stalement for the year
then ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 ara as follows;

Currancy: VND
Cument pear Provious year
Deferred CIT income anising from the revaluation of
financial asseis at FVTRL (19,655,857 028y  (37,559.735975)
Deferred CIT expanseliincome) arising from the
revaluation of outstanding covered warrants {963,136,560) 455,138 9460
Dedermed GIT expense arising from reclassification of
financial assels at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL) to invesiments in associates . 7B,625,524,624
Deferred tax expenses/(income) (20,621,036,888) 42,034,927 606

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share {"EPS") is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax atiributable to
ordinary sharaholders of the Company by the welghted average number of cutstanding
ordinary shares issue during the year. After-tax profit attributable to crdinary shareholders of
the Company for the year end at 31 December 2024 is calculated as the after-tax profit after
deducticn for setting up non-shareholders' reserves according to the actual setling up ratic of
2024, For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, other comprehansive income
has not yet been included in the net profit after tax to calculate the earmings per share indicator
since there is no detailed guidance,

Previous pear
Currevi year {Restated)
Me prafit after tax distribided lo ordinary sharsholdars
= %HND 1.716,425,030,212  2,022,250,810 878
Decrepge adjustments for seffing up bonus and
weifara fund = WND - (185 582 729 995)
Met profit after tax allocated o common shareholders
far calculation of eamings per share — WHD 1,718, 425,030,212 1,836 6B 189 983
VWeighted awverage number of ordinary shares For
calculation of earnings per share — Share 1,522 2060 008 1,522 299 908
Earnings per share — WNDShare () 1,129 1,207

(*} According to the guidance in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 30 = Earnings per
share, if the number of ordinary shares oulstanding increases due o capitalization,
issuance of bonus shares, split shares, or decreases due to compounding shares, the
Company retrospectively adjusts “Basic earnings per share™ for all reporting pericds.
Accordingly, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in 2023 is
adjusted for the number of ordinary shares issued to pay dividends to existing shareholders
im 2024,

aa
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
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32.

321

OTHER INFORMATION

Transactions with related parties

List of related parties incurred significant trangactions and balances with the Company and
relationship of such related parties with Company are as follows:

Related parties Relationship

Board of Deeclors, Significant influencs aver the Company
Maragemant,

Board of Supsrvsion

Golkdsun Food Joint Stock Associate

Cormpiany

Posat - Telesommunication  Associate

Jont - Siock Insurance
Ciorporation

IF.A Securties
Irvesiment Fund
Management Limited
Compary

P& [rvashment Growup
Joint Stack Comgary

Bac Ha Ensrgy Joind
Slock Carmgany

FAM LIFE Mindfulness
Lifestyle Joint Siock
Coamparmy

Viainam hatiansl
Apiciilura Joint Stock
Company

Fimanchal Softwars
Solution Joint Stock
Company

IPA Management

Consultant Company
Limited

Trung Mam Renswable
Energy Comporation
DETATION Joint Shock
Campiarmy

IPAF Inwestment Joet
Hock Compasy

WD Actve Fund
[WMTAF)

IF& Member Fund
(IPAMF)

Chattwornan of the Company i Chalimwaran of the ndated party

Chief Governance Officer of the Campany is Slanding Deputy Genersl Direstor
cum Chief Govenance Officer, responsible forthe Comgany's administration and
autherized for information discioswe of he related porty

Chairwoman of the Company & Chairwoman, General Director snd fegal
represanative of the related party

Chaireoman of Bwe Company &= Mamber of the Beard of Deectors (BOD%) of the
redated party

Wice Chairman cwn Head of Internal Audit Department of the Company is
General Director and legal reprasentative of fhe related party

Skanding Vice Chairman of the Camparry & Charman and bagal reprasantabve of
tha releted party

Wermier of BOD cum Ganeral Cirectar of the Company is hember of BOD of the
refated party

Sharehaolder owns more than 10%: of the votng shares of the Company

Wice Chairman cum Head of inkemial Auchit Departmient of the Comsany is Chief
Executive Officer of the refated paty

Etanding Vice Chairnan of the Company s Chainman and legal regresentative of
ihe relabed pariy

Chaireoman of the Company is Chairmoman and legal representalive of tha
Felied porty

“ice Chairman cum Head of Internal Audit Deparment of the Corgany s
Director curn Member of BOD and legal reprasentative of the refabed party

Chief Gommance Oficer of the Cormpary is Mamber of BOD of the relaled parky

Vice Chaimman cum Head of Infemal Audd Department of the Company is
Chaimrnan s Genseal Direcior and legel representatiye of the relshed party

Head of Board of Sigenision of the Company is Chief Acsauntan of the relsted
perty

Chief Govermnance Cfficer of the Company s Member of 800 of the related paity
Chainwoman of the Compamy s Head of Boerd of Members and legal
representafive of related pary

Chiaf Govemance Officer of the Company is Direcior curm Mermber of Board of
bembers and legal representative of related peity

Tha Company owns more than 108 capital contribution of the related party
The Comgany owns more then 10% capital confribution of the relsted party

Chaiwaman of the Company i= Chaireoman and lega reprassentative of the
refatad party

Chief Gowermance Officar of the Company e Genesal Direcior of the relstad party
Chief Govemance Officer of the Company is Member of fe Board of
Reprasantatimes of the Fund

The surmiber of fund certificates held by the Company accounts for more han
5% of the folal cutstanding fund cerlificates

aF
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F.1

OTHER: INFORMATION (continued)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

BOS-CTCK

Sigrificant transactions with related parfies for the year ended 21 December 2024 are as follows:

Revenus from sale of goods and rendering of
SErvices

IP.A Securitias Investment Fund Management
Limiled Company

LP.A Investiment Group Joint Steck Comparry

Post - Telecormmunication Jalnt - Steck Insurance
Corporation

Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company
Goldsun Food Joint Siock Company
Vietnam National Apiculture Joint Stock Cormpany

Furchase of goods and services

LPA Investment Group Joint Stock CI:-I"I'I[J'-BI‘IBpl
DETATION Joint Stock Company

IPA Management Consultant Company Limited
Post - Telecommunication Joini - Stock Insurance
Corporation

Financial Software Solution Joint Stock Company
IFAM LIFE Mindhdness Lifestyle Joint Stock
Company

LP.A Securifies Invesiment Fund Manasgement
Limited Company

Vigtnam Mational Aplculbure Joint Stock Company
Goldsun Food Joint Stock Company

Interest from securities transaction deposit and
other loans

Financial Software Solution Join Stock Company
Fost - Telecommunication Joint - Steck Insurance
Corporation

Goldsun Food Joint Stock Company

1LP.A Investment Group Joint Stock Company

Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company

DSTATION Jaint Stock Company

LP.& Securities Imvesiment Fund Managemant
Limited Company

Vietmam National Apiculture Jodnt Stock Company

Coupon interest recelved during the year
|.P_A Investment Group Jolnt Steck Company
Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company

Curramcy: VND
Cument yesr  Pravious year
2,722 462,016 2,031,134,428
1,382, 380,516 B75,520,803
1,126,665 887 BE1,0ET, 730
130,468,720 144,536,895
&6, 090, 281 250, 000, 000
&,000,000 -
Bo0. 802

64,043,004,680  42,250,572,825
28,674,892 017 28,102, 168,221
11,197,184 508 -
0,138 236 180 .
5, TR0, 480 445 5,103,850, 778
5,475,832 200 T317, 784,375
3,050,306, 365 200,057 B
538,703,474 455 710,560
150,000,000 360,000,000
38,350,308 5
5,077.309,308 1,273,026 668
2.712,078,003 354 048 004
2,148 5858, 743 20,887 226
112,165,482 =
56,723 456 50,195,541
22,957,700 486,520,208
12,850,203 -
12,074,053 240,145
1,658 350,851,543

288,298 707,911 94,655,820,613
227,296 681,054 47,232 275,000
51,000,026 817 47 423 545 513
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OTHER INFORMATION {continusd)

Transactions with related parties (confinued)

BOS-CTCK

Significant trarmactions with related partes for the year ended 31 Decembbar 2024 are as followes:

Transfar of investment
LP A Investmant Growp Joint Stock Compary

Investment in other companies
Trung Mam Renewable Energy Corporation

Cash dividends paid to shareholders

P& Investment Group Jaint Stock Company
his. Pham Minh Huong

Capltal contribution received

I.F.A Imiestment Group Joind Stock Company
Ms. Pham Minh Huang

Purchases of certilicates of deposit, term
deposits confracts

L.P.A Investment Greup Joint Stock Comparny
Post - Telecommunication Jaint - Stock Insurance
Conporation

Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company

DSTATION Jaint Stock Company

Wietnam Mational &piculture Joint Stock Company

Transfars of certificates of deposit, term
deposits contracts

P& Investment Group Joint Stock Company
Post - Telscommunication Joint - Stock Insurance
Carporation

Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company

Vietnam Natlenal Apicuiture Joint Stock Company
DETATION Joint Stock Company

Principal of loans received during the year

Financial Software Solution Joint Stock Company
DETATION Joind Stock Company

Principal of loans repaid during the year

Financial Software Saolution Joint Stock Company
DSTATIOMN Joint Stock Company

Currancy: VND

CLment year Fravipus yaar

- 165,000,000,000

- 165,000,000,000
B99,450,000,000 450,000,000,000
B9 480,000,000 450, 000,000,000
217, 987,314,200 -
196,650,238, 500 =
21,328,076, 700 i

701,151,500,000

£29,309,560,000
71.841,540,000

8,274 652,258,982
6,577,043 230,110

1,646 BA5, 000,000
B40,387,154,160
5,874, 546 482

4 682, 328,250

7.903,218.738,818
5,247,181,802, 508

1,765,258,661,000
865, 7E8,591,520
9, 181,73E8,450
5,808,947.400

134,647,758,938

126,877,798,939
7.670,000,000

T7.927,600,430

73,757.600,430
4, 170,000,000

818,447 ,860,208
T08,717,860.208

211,730,000 000

-

-
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTCK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decembar 2024 and for the year then endad
OTHER INFORMATION {confinued)
Transactions with related parties (continued)
Significant balances with refated parties as at 31 Decamiber 2024 are &3 follows:
Currancy. VD
Ending balance Opening balance
Shart-term trade receivables BiE, 082,740,938 B86,073,080,315
Trung Mam Renewable Energy Corporation BE.013 888,630 85,013.698,630
LP.A Sacurities Investment Fund Management
Limited Company 62,042 308 53,351,685
Short-term trade payables 1,B80,0456,301 756,501,305
IPA Managemant Consultant Company Limited 1,139,284 440 i
Financial Software Solution Joint Stock Company 586,347,500 -
Past - Telecommunication Jaint - Stock Insurance
Corparaticn 305,078,165 703,357,582
ILP.A Securities Imvasiment Fund Management
Limited Company 48 233,404 45 064 628
IPAM LIFE Mindlulness Lifestyle Joint Stock
Company 1,104,782 7478075
Other short-tarm recelvables 156,510,000 41,241,379
DETATION Joint Stock Cormpamy 156,510,000
Post - Telecommunication Jeint - Stock Insurance
Corporation 41,241,379
Mdvances to suppliers 200,000,000 300,000,000
[IPA Management Consultant Company Limited 200,000,000 300,000,000
Other short-term payables - Deposits 50,001 170,987
Financial Softeare Sohulion Joint Stock Company - 40 550,238 570
[.P_A Invastment Group Joint Stock Company - 130,032 417
Short-term loans E6,720,1%8,509 -
Financial Software Solution Joint Siock Company 23,220,196,508 -
DETATION Joint Siock Company 3,500.000,000 -
Par value of bonds held for sales 1,375,878, 200,000 518.415,000,000
LP.A Imrestment Group Joint Stock Compamy 1,050,878,200,0600 457 898,700,000
Bac Ha Energy Joint Stock Company 325,000,000,000 30,517,300,000
Par value of shares held for sales 456 000,000 4B6,000,000
LP.A Investiment Group Jaoint Stock Company 485,000,000 486,000,000
Deposits, collaterals and pledges 82 186,000,000 80, 800,000,000
Vietnarm Mational Apiculture Joird Stock Company B0, 000,000,000 &0,000,000,000
DETATION Jolmt Stock Company gae, 000,000 -
LP.A Investment Group Joint Stock Company BG0, 000,000 200,000, 000
IF& Management Consultant Company Limited 500,000,000 =
Other long-term investmanis 15,150,000,000 16,150,000,000
IPAF tmvestmant Joind Stock Company 15,150,000,000 15,150,000.000
Encling halsnce Opening balance
Furd Mumiber of g Nomber of owtslanding Holding Mumber of fund
certificates cerfificates hald fund cordificates rafion (3} oertificates hald
VHNDAF 5,000,000 16,068,637 31.12% 5,000, 0000
IPRMF 4,000,000 &, 000,000 £0,00% =
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

32.
2.1

OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

Transactions with related parties {cominuad)

Other transactions with refated parties

BO9-CTCK

Salary, bonus, remuneration for members of Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, the Management and other management members:

Curency: VIND
Current year Previous year

Full nams Title Salary and bonus _ Remuneration _Salary and bonus _ Remuneration
Ms. Pham Minh Huang Chalrworman 4. 7B2 498 906 192,000,000 4.004,500,000 182,000,000
Mr. Mguyen Vu Long General Director cum Mambar of

the Board of Directors 10,848,423,073 182,000,000 7,418,500,000 192,000,000
Mr. Mai Huu Dat Vica Chairman 819,500,000 192,000,000 1,165,642 B57 162,000,000
Mr. Vu Hizn Standing Vice Chaifman cum

Member of the Board of Directors 192,000,000 - 182,000,000
Mr. Vu Viet Anh Independent Member of the Board

of Directars - 192,000,000 182,000,000
Board of Supervision Head of the Supervisory Board and

Members of the Supervisory Board - Ja60,000, 000 . 360,000,000
Other management members 7,540 98T 182 - B,586,500,000 -
Total 24,389 ,410,251 1,320,000,000 21,185,142,857  1,320,000,000

A W B I
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VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NMOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

32,
32.2

OTHER INFORMATION (continuad)
Segment information

Segment Information by business lines

Brokerage and

customear senvicas

Proprietary trading Treasury

BOS-CTCK

Currency; WYND

Cithers Total

Financial y&arend-ud
31 December 2024
1.  Melincoma from sacurities

2,770,467 597,084 423 338 83,007

1,792,873,187,782 §3,912,141,058

B2,123,321,968 5,348 912 898,758

191,440,151, 710 _ 2,803,815 807,108

977,594,409,302  369,426,542,039
234,792,554,178 35,677,254 440

- -

{109,316,829,741)  2,545,007,291, 650
B850 815,933 453.311,535,893
3,461,623 460 3,451,623.460

742,801,855,124 333,549,287,559

_(119,738,269,134)  2,088,324,132,297

26,730,172,758,642  6,553.720,112.627

1,062.447,020,316 43,967,902,061,010

25,730,172, 758,642  6,553,720,112,627

306,874,611,461 108,874,611 461
1,389,321,631,777  44,204,776,672,471

1,120,954,391. 205 22 BO2 623,568 379

78,628,524,824 24,106 548 882 325
473,050,096,835 _ 473,050,006,935

trading activiies 2,072,583.255 708
2. Directly atiributable

EXPENSES 765,690,125 658
Allocated operating
profit/{loss) before tax 1,307,393,170,050
3. Depreciation, amortisation

and unallocated expenses 175,681,511,342
4. Loss from other operating

activitias
Operating profit{loss) before
tax 1,131,711,258, 708
Balance as at 31 December 2024
1. Alpcated assets 10,641,552 169,525
2. Unaliocaled assets =
Total assets 10,641,562, 169,526
1. Segment labilities 14,441,388 117
2. Unallocated abilities .
Total llabilities 14,441,398 117

1,120,954,391,205 22,892 623,568,379

551,688,621,559 24,579,707,979,260

G2
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

32,

J2.2

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information (continued)

Segment information by business lines (continued)

Brokerage and

customer services  Proprietary lrading

Treasury

Others

BOA-CTCK

Currancy; YND

Total

Financial year ended
31 December 2023

1. Met income from securitiss
trading activities
2. Directly attributable expenses

2,021,115,845,865
1,004,657, 720,085

3,803,176,087,380
2,420,828 087 222

505,589,797 968
118 686,280,321

271,879,248,038
128,856,650, 157

6,602,161,580,251
3,683,028,737,785

Allocated operating profit before
taxes

3. Depreciation, amortisation
and unallocated expenses

4. Loss from other operating
activities

Operating profit before tax

1,016,458,226,780  1,373,348,900,158  385,303,517,647  143,022,507,881  2,819,133,242 466
131,656,344 433 247,740,551,533 32,060,388 853 17.710,328.781  430,087,613.400

- - - 6,723 177,083 . 6 723177003

884,801,882,347  1,125,608,348,625  353,343,128,904  118.589,092,007  2,482,342,451,973

Balance as at 31 December 2023

1. Allocated ssseis
2. Unallocated asssts

10,285,791,836,320

17 639,522,277,087

12,486,083 279,037

=

1,320,692,778,022

40,421,397,282 444
1,320,692,778,922

Total assals

10,285,791,836,320

17,638,622, 277,087

12,496,082,279,037

1,320,692,778,922

41,742,090,171,266

1. Segment lizbilities
2. Unallocated liabdities

B21,505,307 087

23,780,485 275,378

24,612,000,672 466
622,178,871 906

Total liabilities

821,595,397, ,087

23,790,495,275,178

622,179,971,906
§22,179,971,906

25234 270,644,372

53
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

3.
32.3

J2.4

325

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
Operating lease commitments

The Company leases office under operating lease arangements. As at 31 December 2024,
the committed future rental payments under the operating lease agreements are as follows:

Crrrancy: YIND

Ending balance  Baginning Balance

Lesa than 01 year 222055, 800 52 400,000
From 01 — less than 05 years 55 BOE 795,300 72,718, 733,001
From 05 years 112,343,734,123  130,024,786,703
Total 172,474,587,723  203,733,919,704

Commitments relating to margin lending service

The Company signed margin lending contracts with investors to facilitate securities
trading activities of investors.

Purposes and policies of financial risk managemant

The Company's financial liabilities comprise mostly Rabilites and borrowings, payables to
suppliers and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liakilities is to finance the
Company's operations. The Company has loans, rade and cther receivables, cash and short-
term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The Company does net hobd or issue
derivative financial instruments at the end of the year.

The Company is exposed to market nsk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Campany. Tha Company has a
system of controls in place 1o maintain an ecceptable batance betwean the cost arsen from
risks and the cost of managing the risks. Managemean! continually monitors the Company's
fisk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance betwesn risk and control is
achieved.

Management reviews and agrees policies for montoring each of these risks which are
summarized as balow:

Markat risk

Markal risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a firancial instrumant will
fluctuzte because of changes in marke! prices. There are four types of market risk: interest
rabe risk, currency risk, commedity price risk and other price risk, such as stock and bond price
risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits,
financial assets at FWTPL, covered warrants and available-for-sale investments

4



VMNDIRECT Securities Corporation BO9-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

J2.

325

OTHER INFORMATION {cominued)
Purposes and policies of financial risk management [continued)
Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair valuz or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interast rates. The Company’'s exposure 1o market
risk Is primarily relatad to the cash and short-term deposits of the Company, as these are
short-term investments and are not hald by the Company for the purpose of profiting from
value increases. Most of the financial liabilities have fixed Interast rate.

The Company manages interest rate risk by looking at the competitive structure of the market
to identify @ proper interest rate palicy which is favourable for purpeses of the Company within
its risk management limits.

Mo analysis on interest sensitivity is performed since the Company's exposure to nesk of
changes in interest rate is inslgnificant

Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fiuctuate because of changes in foreign exchange ratas, The Company's expesure o the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating
activities (in which revenus or expense 5 denominated in 8 different currency from the
Company's accounting currency],

The Company manages foreign exchange risk by reviewing the current and projected market
when planning to buy and sedl goods and services in farsign currencies. To mitigate foreign
axchanga risk, the Company enters info cross-curmency swap contracts, foreign exchange
forward confracts, etc with commercial banks,

Stock and bond price risk
Listed and unlisted stocks and bonds which are held by the Company are affected by market
risk arising from the uncertainty of future value of invested stocks and invested bonds. The

Company manages stock and bond price risk by establishing investment Emds, The
Company’s Invesiment Council considers and approves investmenis in stocks and bonds.

B5
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VNDIRECT Securities Corporation BOS-CTEK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cantinued)
a5 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then andad

32.
325

OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
Purposes and policies of financial risk management {continuead)
Credit risk

Credit riek is the risk that counterparty would not mest its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed fo credil
risk from its operating activities (primarily for loans and receivables) and from its financing
activities, including depaosits with banks, forelgn exchanges activities and other financial
instruments.

Receivahbles

Customer credit risk |5 managed by the Company based on its established policies,
proceduras and control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of
customers is evaluated based on Management's assessment

Quistanding customer recaivables are regularly monitored. Customer credit quality's
impairmant is analysed at each repofting date on an individual basis for major clients. The
Company closely monitors outstanding receivables and operales a credit controd wnit to
mitigate credit risk, Since the Company's receivables related to a large number of diversified
customers, there s no significant concentration of credit risk.

Bank deposils

The Company's bank balances are mainly maintained with well-known banks in Vietnam.
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's Treasury Department in
accordance with the Company's policy. The Company’'s maximum expasure fo credd risk for
the components of the statement of financial position at each reporting date is the carmying
value as presented in Nofe § and Note 7.2 The Company evalusies the concentration of
credit risk with respect bo bank deposits as low,

Margin lending and advances fo customers

The Company manages [ts cradit risks via the use of internal centrol policies, process and
procaduras relevant to margin lending and advance payments fo cusiomers. The Company
only provides margin landing with secunties eligible to perform margin trading under the
Regulation on Margin Lending and is rated in accordance with VNDIRECT s principle of share
quality assessment. The cradit limits are measured based on value af collateral assets,
customer's credit rating and other indicators.

Tha following loans are considered as overdue as at 31 December 2024 (excluding conlracts
that was extended or liquidated before the signing date of this report), Except for financial
assets which are reserved for impairment as stated in Mofes 8, accoeding to the
Management's assessmant, the remaining financial assets are neither averdue nor impaired
as they all have good liquidity.



VMNDIRECT Securnities Corporation BOO-CTCK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

32. OTHER INFORMATION (continuad)
325 Purposes and policies of financlal risk managemaent (continued)

Credit risk {continued) o WD
LITENCY,

Bafance Medher overdie Overdiee but not impaied
Todal prowisioned Mo impated <= 90 days §i1-180 days 180 days =210 days

Beginning balance 10,285781,8356 320 132052,141,832 10,080,778 982,868 25752357617 5486918429 2.514,048,992 20,207 356,484
Ending balance 10,343 827,085,282 80,987,712,164 10,067,215,053,502 132,760,736.461 47.619,900404 B.661,158 387 206,184,334, 364

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting financial obligations. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises
when the Company i$ unabile to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, primarily due to mismatches in the maturity terms of financial assets and
lighilities, The maturity terms of financial assets and liabilitias reflect the ramaining period of financial assets and liabilities from the end of the accounting
year to the date of settiement set out in the contracts or terms of issuance. For FVTPL and AFS financial assets, the maturity terms are determined
based on the liguidity of the asseis (the ability ko sall and purchase the assets in short term) on the marked

The Company monitors its liquidity risk by maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings deemed adequate by the Management to
finance the Company's cperations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

a7



VNDIRECT Securities Corporation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then anded

3.
J2.5

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Purposes and policies of financial risk management (contnuead)

Liquidity risk (confinued)

M Decamber 2024

ASSETS

Caszh and cash equivalenis
Firgncizl asssis

FVTFL financial sssets

HTM invesiments

Loans {axchsding pravisions)
Invesiments in asaociates
{nher lzng-term immestmants

Other assofs

Deposis, colleterals and pledges

Criher recaivables (axduding provissans)
Cilhee asnels

Fixad assats

[Including construction n progress)

Tatal

LIAEILITIES

Shart-32mm bomowings and financal
lBases

Bonds issued

Fayabies Tor securities frading activifies
Aoorued eXpaEnses

Statutory cbligations

Ceber Fabilities

Taotal

BOS-CTCK

The below table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's assets and liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
Currency; VIND

Notexcpading  From above 07 fa

D On dernand 07 pear 05 years Over 05 years Total
- T34,465,560,472 148, 705,000,000 - - BT, 174, 660,472
M AMETZL 60 24 515,200,006, 788 15,800,166,013,124 - B4B661ESZO00  41.371.464,844,078
- 24,519,200,006.786 - - 24.519,200,006,765
- - 5560,073,000,000 - - 5,560,973,000,000
224,431.8572,168 10,116.158.013,124 . 10.343,527.885. 262
x . . 814,505,332.000 14,505.332,000
- - - 34,158,520,000 34,158,520.000
293,269,034, 395 65, 172,200,963 1,734,932.837,809 115, 756,642,024 87, 2T0,045,850 2,700,600,959, 721
. - T06.245,970,000 108,572,428 i 108,380,642, 428
203,460,034,305 2721,7265077  1,6288ME0BTRAD  112,651,680.508 2,007,520, 296,957
. 66,450,673, 858 . - £6,450,673.888
- - 87,270,045 850 B7, 270,045,850
517,901,006,563  25,322,830,066,221  17,561,810,851,013 115756642024 1035933, 807,850 44,554, 241,453,671
2,400,244 515,218 . 2E406, 244 BI5I6
4400.000,000,000 . . AD0,000,000,000
- 1,113,475,988,297 - . 1,113,475,086,207
- 58,395,523, 064 - - 58,385,623,004
- TIE.560,401,372 - - 236,583.401,372
294, 741,347,232 40,267, 105,958 - 335,008.453,181
294,741,347,232  24,284,966,832,028 - - 24,579,707,679,200
517,901,006,663 28,026,087, T1B.880  (6,723,185,781,015)  115785,642,024 1,035933,807,850  10,074,533,484,411

Wet Bguidity difference

&8
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 30 December 2024 and for the year then ended

z
JL5

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Purposes and policies of financial risk management (confinued)

Collaterals

The Company also usas short-term and long-tarm financial assets to secure its shor-term
loans from credit institutions. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of financial assets used
as collaterals for the Company’s shor-term loans was VND 15,048 billion (as at 31 Decembear
2023: VND 11,425 billion)

The Company held securities as pledged assets for margin loans of customers as at 31
December 2024

EVENTS AFTER THE BALAMNCE SHEET DATE

There B no matter or cireumstance that has arisen since the batance sheat date that requires
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements of the Campany,

i B

Ms. Le Thi Hoai Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Mr. Nguyen Yu Lang
Preparer Chief Accountant Ganaral Dirsctor



